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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT 

D e l o i t t e  & T o u c h e  LLP 
250 East 5"" Street 
Suite 1900 
Cincinnati, OH 45202-5109 
USA 

Tel: 513-784-7100 
Fax '  513 -784-7201  
www delottte com 

7 o tlic 13oxcl of'Directors and  Stocldiolder of D ~ k c  Energy Kentucky: 

\Yc have aidited tlic accompanying balance sheets of Duke Eiiergy Kentucky (formerly 
The IJnioii Light, Heat & Power Company) (the Tonipany") as of Decembei- 3 1 ,  2006 
and  2005, md the rclated statements of operations, coiiiiiioii stocldiolder's equity and 
coiiilmIiei7sive income (loss), and cash flows for tlie years then ended. These financial 
statements arc tlic rcsponsibility of the Coiiipany's maiiagenient. Or.ir responsibility is to 
express an opinioii on t h e  financial stateiiicnts based on our audits. 

\Yc cmductctl O L I I  audits in accoidance with generally accepted arrditing standaIds as 
establishecl by the Auditing Standards Board (United States) and in accordance with the 
auditing stmdards of tlie Public Co i i ip iy  Accounting Oversight Board (United States). 
7 hose standaids require that we plan and l?erfonn tlie audit to obtaiii reasonable 
assiii a i im ill>olIt whether the financial statements are fi-ce of material misstateincnt. The 
Company i s  iiot requiied to have, nor were we engaged to perform, an audit of its internal 
control ovcr financinl reporting. Our audits included consideration of internal control 
ovcr finaiicial rcporhig as n basis for designing audil procediires that are appropriate in 
thc circiimstaiices, but not lor tlie purpose of expressing a n  opinion on tlie effectiveness 
of  the Coiiipauy's iiiteriial control over finaiicial reporting. Accordingly, we express 110 

Si . tch  opinion. An audit also includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the 
amounts and disclosures in the fiiiaiicial statcmeiits, assessing the nccountiiig principles 
uscd aiicl s,giiificaiit estimates made by iiiniiagemeiit, as well as evaluating tlie overall 
financial s!ateiiient prcsentatioii. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis 
foi oiir opinion. 

In otIr opii-lion, such financial stnteiiients present fairly, in all material respects, the 
finaiicial posirioii oftlie company as of Deceiiiber 3 1 ,  2006 and 2005, and tlic results of 
its operations and its cash flows for the years tlicii ended in conforiiiity with accounting 
principles generally acceptcd in tlie United States of America. 

Cincinnati OH 
April 13, 2007 

Member of 
Deloitte Touche Tohrnatsu 



DUIm ENERGY KENTUCKY 
STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS 

Years Elitled 
Decelnller 31, 

2006 2005 
(111 Ihorlsn/rtls) 

!$ 267,917 S 239,801 
136,535 148,326 
404,452 388,127 

Operating I<slieiises 
Nairiial gas and petiolctriii p iod i i c t s  ptirchased 92,105 100,663 
Opei ation, iiiaiiiteiiaiice, and otlici 115,911 67,292 
Fuel tiscd i n  elccti ic generation and ~it~icliased ~iowei 116,314 168,158 
Dcpi ccialioii and aiiioi tizatioii .37,750 20,625 

372,147 361,693 
Pi(ipci ty ani1 oiliei laxcs 10,067 4,955 

1-01 :i I 011 era ti iig Es 1) eiises 

Opcr~ili i ig Iiiroiiie 32,305 26,434 

Otllel Illcolnc illltl Espellses, net 2,209 2,047 
1riterc.st Es(,ellse 15,776 6,003 

lllcollle Bclorc. llrcollle Tnses  18,738 22,478 

I ~ ~ C O I I I C  -ras E K ~ C I I S ~  8,015 7,833 

Net Illcollle !$ 10,723 S 14,645 

See Notes to Fiiiaiicial Stateiiirnts 
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DUKE ENERGY I(ENTUC1CY 
BALANCE SHEETS 

4SSE-I s December 3 1  Deceinber 3 1, 
2006 2005 

(i l l  lllolls~l/lds) 

C i i r i w t  Ahsets 
Cash aiiJ cash cqitivaleiits li; 6,59.3 $ 9,876 
i l ecc iva i~ les  (iici of allowance for dotib~fiil accotin1s ol$342 a1 Dcccmbci- 3 I ,  2006 
ml $162 at 1)ccenibei 3 I ,  2005) 32,768 37,452 
l l l \~cl l to l  y 29,002 10,767 
OtlICl 8,555 4,500 

Total curlwit ;issets 76,918 62,595 

Ill\ cstlllellls a l l d  Otl1er Assets 
Intaiigible iisiets 
OlllC~l 

Total i n v c s t i i i e i i t s  ar id other assets 

12,470 1,093 
1,54 I 560 

14,011 1,053 

l’ropci ty, 1’1nii1, and Eqoil)iileiit 
cos1 1,451,463 634,079 
1 . e ~ ~  acctiiiiti1atCd tlepieciation and amoi tization 599,625 188,014 

Nr t iiropcrty, I)lnnt, niitl  e q i i i p i i i e n t  851,838 445,465 

Total reguinloiy nssels niitl delrrt ed debits 

5,827 3,l 1 1  
31,739 5,390 
37,566 8,501 

li; 980,333 $ 518,214 

See Notes to Fiiisiicial Stnteincrits 
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DUKE ENERGY ICENTUCICY 
BALANCE SHEETS 

I I ~ i l 3 l l ~ I ~ l ~ l E S  A h D  C;ORIMON STOCXMOLIIER'S EQUITY 
December 31, Decciiiber 3 I ,  

2006 2005 
(iri /lioiismds) 

( ' i i i w i i t  I iabilitiec 
!ii 45,423 S: 53,021 

42,603 20,777 
6,603 6,769 
2,808 1,374 
1,318 1,233 

10,827 8,065 
109,582 101,139 

283,192 105,503 

1)elerrctl Credits : i i id  0 1 1 1 ~  I,inbilities 
Delciic iI iii:oiiic taxcs 149,016 52,800 
i i i \cst i i ie i i t  tas c icd i t  6,634 2,373 
.\ci:i iicd pc is io i i  niitl othci post ict i ie i i ie i i t  beiielit costs 36,497 10,354 
I<egula!ory l iabi l i t ies 29,432 29,038 
Assci i ctii e.iieiit o l ~ l i g a t i ~ ~ i s  8,266 6,306 
Other 8,366 5,242 

Total drlel-rcd cridils niitl otlirr li;ibilities 238,211 I 15,113 

('oiiiiiiitiiients aiitl contiiigeiicies (Note 15) 

( 'o iii i i io ii Stoi ltlio I dcr 's E(lu i t y 
Coiiimoii siock - $15 00 pal value; I,OOO,000 shares authorized aiid 585,333 sliaics 

8,780 8,780 
I'aid-iii cap La1 164,.344 23,760 
llei a iii(d ea I i i  iii g,s 176,965 166,242 
\ccri i i i r i latc d othei coi i ip ie l ic i is ive lobs (741) (2,323) 

cititst;iiidiiig 21 Deceiiilier 3 1, 7006 :ind I>cceiiiber 3 I ,  2005 

Total C(Ji1lllltIll StOCk Eqi i i t~  319,348 196,459 

l ' o ~ a l  l.,i;il>ilitics aiid Stocklioltler's Equity !ii 980,333 S 51S,214 

See Notes to Fiiiaiicinl Statements 



D U I e  ENERGY I(ENTUCI<Y 

(i 11 t hoiisn iitls) 

STA.TI<R IENT OF CI IANGES IN COMMON STOCICIIOLDER'S EQIJITY AND COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (LOSS) 

Accuiniilatetl Other 
Comoiwliriisive Iiicomc (Locs) 

N e t  Gniiis Nliniiiiii iii rota1 
(Losses) 011 Pen sio it Commc 

Storltholti Conllilon I'n i tl-i ii lletniiietl Cash Flow 1 inbility 

Ne. iiicciiiiv 
Otiict compr'clit nsivc inconit, net ol'tax effect of $608 

h I i t i i i i i i i  i ii ciicioii liability 'idj list iiicii t 

To al coiiiprclieiisive iiiconie 

14,645 1' 

(1.0.37) (1 
I .  

-___ 
I l a l :  l i t e  ;it I)erenlbcr 31, ZOO5 X X,78O X 23,760 $' 166,242 $ - 5 (L32.3) .$ 191 

____- 

$ 10,723 

52.3 

140,061 

$ 11 

(767) , 

3,090 

I41 

See Notes to Fiiiniicial Statements 
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DUICE ENERGY IUZNTUCKY 
STATEhlENTS OF CASH FLOWS 

Cash F l m s  Iroiii Opcrsling Acti\ities 
Net iiicoiiic 
Atlju~tiiieiils tci iec m i l e  i i e l  iiicoiiie to net cash piovii led b y  opeialiiig activities: 

Dc 111 cc i i oii an( aiiiort i zil t i  oi i 

(Gains) losst.s oi sales ol'cqiiity i i ivcst i i ie i i ts  arid otliei assets 
L7clei I et1 iiicoiiie tascs 
Reyulatory nssci l iabil i ty aiiioi tiziitioii 
Acci tied pciisioii aiid posticliicmeiit hei ic l i t  costs 
Coiiti ibtitioii to ( oiiipaiiy spoiisoi cd peiisioii plan 

Nei I cillizcd aiid tiiii eiilized iiiurl(-to-innr!~et aiid lietlgiiig tiiiiisactions 
I k e i  vablcs 
/ii\ eiitoi y 
Ot l ie i  cu i ien t  assets 

I i i r i ew  (ilcciea:.e) i i i :  
I\ccoLlllts i,;ly>ble 
I :ises ace1 Lied 

Otl ie i  ctirieiic iiabilirics 
Rcglatciiy t isscl l iabil i ty t i d e i i a l s  
Otllel assets 
Otliei liabiliiies 

!$ 10,723 $ 14,645 

37,750 20,625 
(104) 51 

8,481 2,101 
.3,969 3,847 
4,113 2,718 

(2,330) ( I &I I ) 

1,653 
4,684 (0,655) 

2,849 (4,215) 
(1,556) (2,267) 

(8,849) 14,757 
(166) 7,340 

( 4 8  16) (5,459) 
8,466 1,9.57 

(6,804) (2,578) 

2,545 2,191 

Nct  cnsli ~ir.c~vitIctl Iiy opcrntiiig activities 61,408 44,257 

C a s h  f;Iot\s lroiii I n \  estiiig r\cli\,ities 
C a p i t ~ l  exlieiitliturcs 
Pui cliases (11 eiiiission allowaiicus 
Sale t i l  ciiiissioii aI!o\v:iivxs 

(65,096) (47,144) 
(23,289) 

4,748 

Net cnsli iiscd iii irivestiiig nctiviticb (83,637) (47,144) 

193,728 
(76,939) 
(93,454) 18,531 

(9,965) 
(4,389) 

Net c:isli ~irovi t led b y  liiiaiiciiig nctiviiies 18,946 8,566 

(3,28.3) 5,679 Nct (deci  use) iiicrease iii c:isli and cnsli eqii i \nlci l ts 

C a s h  niitl cas11 cquiv:ileiils :it Iiegiiiniiig o l y e n I  

Cash niitl cash eqiriv:ileiics a t  eiitl or yeai  

9,876 4,197 

!$ 6,593 S 9,876 

Supplei i ie i i t : i l  Disclo\ureu 

( ' a h  paid dt i i  in:: tlic pci iotl lor: 
I i i i c i cs t  (iict o I a  iiouiit capitalized) 
Iiicoiiie tascs 

Noii-zxli i i i ini ici i ig anti iiivcbtiiig activities: 
Eq.iily coi i t i  ibtit on lioiii palei i t  c'oiiiliaiiy Ioi- acqiiisitioii 0 1  iict generaling assets 

!$ 13,913 $ (1,581 
X 5,950 S (2,689) 

!$ 140,061 S 
_ _ _ ~  - 

See NO1125 IO Fiiiniicinl Stntemciiis 
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

1. 

.Vritir re q f -  Opei*(itioiis 

I)uke Energy I<eiit:icky (formerly ?’lie Union L,iglit, Heat and Power Com~iaiiy), a I<ent~iclcy corporatioil oigaiiized 
in 1901. is a combination electric and gas public utility company that piovides service in nortliein I<eiitucky. Dulte 
f i n q y  I<ent~.icl~y’s coiiiiiion stock is wliolly owned by Dulce Energy Oliio, formerly The Cincinnati Gas & Electi ic 
Company. a n  Ohio coiporation organized in 1837, which is wliolly owned by Ciiieigy Corp., a Delaware 
corpoi-ill ion oi gmi;:ed in 1993. 

Suinmal-y of Sigiiificanl Accounting Policies 

C h i  April 3, 2006, i n  accoidance with tlieii previously aimounced nierger agreement, Dulce Eiieigy Corporation (Old 
Duke Energy) and Cine]-gy Corp. merged into \vliolly owiied subsidiaries of Dulce Eiiergy I-Iolciiiig Cor])“ (Duke 
h c i g y  NC). resulting in Dulte Eiiei gy €IC becoming the parent entity. In connection with the closiiig of tlie inergel 
ti ansactions. Dulce Energy I<(: changed its iiaiiie to Duke Energy Coi-poiation (“New Dulce Eneigy” or “Dulte 
Eiiicsrgy”) and Old Duke Energy converted into a limited liability coiiipany named Duke Power Coiiipaiiy L.L,C. As a 
iesiilt ol‘the merge: transactions, each outstanding share of Cineigy coiiiiiioii stock was converted into 1.56 shares of 
h l c e  Etiergy coii~~iioii stock, and each shale of coiiiiiioii stock of Old Dike  Eiieigy was coiiveited into one share of 
LMce Energy coiiii~ioii stock, which resulted i n  tlie issuance of appioxiiiiatcly .3 13 lidlion s h a m  of Duke Energy 
commoii stock. See Note 2 for additioiial inlormation iegarding tlie inergel. Both Old Dulte Eneigy aiid New Duke 
h r r g y  ale referred to as Duke Energy herein. 

’To confoi 111 to gencrally acceptcd accounting principles (GAAP) in tlie ‘Iliiited States, management iiialces estimates 
aiid asswiiptions that affect the amounts repoited in  the Financial Statements and Notes. Although these estimates 
are based on maiiagement’s best available Icnowledge a t  the time, actual results could differ. 

1\11 liiglily liquid investiiients with original maturities of tliree months or less at tlie date of puichase are considered 
cash cq\iivalents. 

111 IJe/ltOl:)l 

Invzntoi y consists primal ily of inaterials and supplies aiid natural gas held in storage for transmission and sales 
coiiiiiiitiiients; and coal held for electric generation. Inventory is recorded a t  the lower of cost or mailcet value, 
primarily using tlie avciage cost method 

I)eccinl)er 3 1 ,  Decenibei 3 I ,  
2006 2005 

I nucnt  o “J’ 

I Lie1 t o i  LISC iii elccti ic  liiotluctioii 
O h  iiiatuiiais and  supplics 
cias atoled Ibl CLlrreIll LlSe 

1)uIce Enet gy I<ent.iclcy uses tlie same accounting policies and practices for financial reporting Imposes as non- 
legdated companics uiictei- GAAP. However, sometimes actioiis by its regulators, tlie Federal Energy Regulatory 
Coiixnission (FERC) a n d  the state utility commission, iesult in accounting treatiiieiit different fiom that used by 
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noli-regulated coiiipaiiies. \Vlien this occurs Dulce Energy ICenhicky applies the provisions of Stateiiieiit of Financial 
Accouiiing Standaids (SFAS) No. 71, “.4ccoirrit7ngfo,. the EjYec/ q{ Cerfniri Qpes of Regirltrtior?” (SFAS No. 71) 
l’lie economic effects of iegulation can result in a regulated company iecording assets foi costs tliat have been or are 
esper ted 10 be iipprovcd foi iecoveiy li-om customers or recording liabilities for amounts that are expected to be 
rehiined to customers in  tlie rate-setting process i n  a period di ffei-eiit fi om the period in which tlie amounts would be 
iecordetl by an  iiiu$gulatecl enterpi-ise. Accordingly, Dulce Energy I<enhicky records assets and liabilities that result 
fi om ~l i r  iegulaied iateiiiaking process that would not be i,ecoided undei GAAP lor lion-regulated entities. 
Maiiageiiieiit contiiiually assesses whether iegiilatory assets ale probable of futuie iecoveiy by considering factors 
such its ;ipplicnble i egulatoi y changes, iecent late oideis applicable to otliei- regulated entities and the status of any 
pending or potential dciegulalion legislation. Based on this continual assessment, managemeiit believes tlie existing 
iegulotory assets ai e pi obable of‘ r e c o w  y. These regulatory assets and liabilities are primarily classified in tlie 
Balance Sheets as liegiilatory Assets ant1 Deferred Debits, and Deferred Credits and Other Liabilities. Duke Energy 
I<entuchy pel iodiciilly e\,aluaies tlie applicability of SFAS No. 7 1 ,  and consitlets factoi-s such as regulatory changes. 

Duke Eiiei,gy Kent icky tises ;i number oFdiffeieiit deiivative iiiid noli-derivative instiuments in connection with its 
coiiiniotlity 131 ice a id intercst iaie iislc management activities, including swaps, futures, foruwcls and  options. All 
del 1vati:‘e instriiiiic; iits not desigiiatcd and qualifying foi tlie normal purchases and normal sales exception under 
SFI\S h o  1.33, “ A (  coirnrirrgjhr~ Deriiwirve I I I S ~ I ~ I I I I I ~ I I ~ ~  a r i d  Hedgirrg ,?ctivrties”, as amended (SFAS No. l i 3 ) ,  are 
izcoitletl on the Bala1ic.e Sheets at theii lair value. Cash inflows and outflows related to derivative instruments, 
except those t l i a t  contain finalicing elements and those I elated to investing activities, ale a component of opeiating 
cash llows i n  the accompanying Statements of Cash Flows. Cash inflows and outflows related to deiivative 
instruments contailling financing elements are a coiiipoiient of financing cash flows in tlie accoiiipanying Statements 
oi Cash Flo\vs \vliile cnsli i i if low and outflows fioiii derivatives related to investing activities are a component of‘ 
iiivesiiiig cash floa s in  tlie accompnnying Statements of Cash Flows. 

\Vliei\ available, qi oted market prices or pi ices obtained tlvougli external sources are used to iiieasure a contiact’s 
f 3 i i  vdiie Foi coiilracis with a tlelivei y location 01 duration for wliicli quoted niarltet pi ices ale not available, fair 
1 altie is dzterminetl based oii iiiteriiiilly tlevelopetl valuation techiiiques or models. For del ivatives recognized under 
the MTM Motlcl, I aluLition acljustmeiits are also iecognizcd in tlie Statements of Operations 

Property, plant ;iiid eqliipment are slated at the lower ofliistoiical cost less accumulated depreciation or fail value, if- 
iiiipaited. Duke Eiicrgy I<eiit~icky capitalizes all constiiiclion-~elatecl direct labor and material costs, as well as 
iiidii ect constructit 11 costs. Iiidii ect costs iiiclude geiiei a1 cngineering, tases antl the cost of fiiiitls used during 
construi,tioii The cost of renewals and betterments that extend tlie useful life of property, plniit and equipment is 
also c a p i t a l i d  Tlie cost of repairs, replacements and iiia,jor maintenance projects, which do not extend the useful 
life or iiici eiise the expected output of property, plant arid equipment, is expensed as it is incurred. Depreciation is 
geneially computed o\ el the m e t ’ s  estimated iiseful life using tlie straight-line method. Tlie composite weiglited- 
aveiage depieciatictn rkitcs were 2 6% for 2006 and .3.4(!% f b i  2005. 

\VIieii Duke Enzigy I<zntuclcy rctiics its property, plan1 and equipiiieiit, i t  charges tlie original cost plus the cost of 
ietit-eiiicn(, less salitage valtie. to accuinulated depreciation and amortization. When i t  sells eiitiie operating units, the 
cost is removed from tlie propel ty account and the ielated accumulated depreciation and amortization accouiits are 
I-zdxed Any gain or loss is recorded i n  earnings, unless otliei wise requiietl by the applicable regulatory body. 

I)uke Eiieigy Kent  icky iecoznizes :isset retirement obligations (ARO’s) in accoidaiice with SFAS No. 14.3, 
“At corr//tiug For A use/ Re//re/wi/[  ~b/fgotinns” (SFAS No. 143), foi legal obligations associated with tlie retireiiieiit 
of long-lived assets that resuli fi om tlie acquisition, consti tiction, development and/or normal use of the asset and 
IASI3 Inteipietatioii No. 47, “Accoirrilir7g /br Ccmlitior7al Asset Retirerner?/ Ohl7gatio~rs” (FIN 47), fol conditional 
ARO’s in which tlic tiiiiiiig 01 method of settleiiieiit are conditional on a futuie event that may or may not be within 
the contiol olDti1u’ Eiieigy I<entucky. Both SFAS No. 143 antl FIN 47 require that tlie fail value of a liability l o r  an 
A R O  be recognizetl i n  the peiiod i n  wliicli i t  is iiicui-red, it‘a reasonable estimate offair value can be made. The fair 
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valiie of the liability is added to tlie carrying amount of the associated asset. This atlditioiial can ying amount is then 
rlepieciiited ovei tlie estimatecl iiseful life oftlie asset. 

Duke Energy 1Ceiit.icky evaluates M.liether long-lived assets, including intangible assets, have beeii impaired when 
ciic ~iiiis~aiices indicate the cai ryiiig value of those assets may not be recoverable. For such long-lived assets, 
impairiiient exists \vlien its carrying value exceeds the sum of estimates of the uiidiscouiited cash flows expected to 
iesiilt fi om the use and eventual disposition of tlie asset. When alternative coiiises of action to iecovei the carryiiig 
amount o f a  long-lived asset are under consideiation, a probability-weighted approach is used for developiiig 
estimutes of future undiscountetl cash flows. If tlie carrying value of the long-lived asset is not iecoverable based 011 

these estimated frit “ire Liiidiscounted cash flows, the impairment loss is measured as the excess of the asset’s cai-ryiiig 
1 aliie o \ w  its Cair \slue, such that the asset’s caii ying value is adjusted to its estiiiiated fair value. 

h4anagement assesses the fhir value of long-lived assets using coiiuiionly accepted techniques, and may use more 
than oiir s o m e  Sources to dcteriiiine fair value include, but are not liiiutecl to, recent third party coinparable sales, 
iiiteriially developed discounted cash flow analysis and aiialysis from outside advisors. Significant changes in 
iiiaikct conditions resulting fiom events such as changes iii coiixiioclity prices or tlie condition of a n  asset, or a 
change in managei-:ienr’s intent to utilize the asset woiild generally ieqiiire iiianageiiient to re-assess the cash flows 
i:lated 10 tlic long-lived assets. 

1 Jiinii iorfizerl Debt Piwri i i i i i i ,  Discorrut m i d  Espeii se 

Pieiiiiuiiis, discounts and  espeiises iiicui red with the issuance of outstanding long-term debt are amortized over the 
tci iiis 01 the debt issues. Any call p i  emiums 01 unamoitized expenses associated with refinancing higher-cost debt 
obligations to Linaice iegulatcd assets and opeiatioiis ale amortized consistent with 1-egtilatoi-y treatment of those 
iieiiis. \& Iierc appiopriate. 

I)uke Eiiei gy I<eiit.icky expenses enviioiimental expenditures related to conditions caused by past operations that do 
not gcncsiate CLII rent 01 future revenues. Environmental expenditures related to opeiations that generate cwient or 
fiitiac iL’veiities are expensed or capitalized, as appiopriate. Liabilities are recoided when the necessity for 
en\,iioniiiental iemediation becomes piobable ant i  the costs can be leasonably estimated, or when other potential 
en\.iioniiienial liabilities are reasonably estiniable and probable. 

Re\Ieiiric Recognition 

Revenues f o i  electric a id  gas scrvice ai e recorded when tleliiwed to customers. Customers are billed tliro~igl~out 
the month as both gas m d  electi ic nietei s are read. Dulx Energy I<eiitucky recognizes reveiities for retail eiiergy 
s;iIrs h i t  Iiave not yet been billed, but where gas 01 electricity has beeii consumed. Given the w e  of these systems 
and tlie fact that customers are billed iiioiithly, Duke Energy ICentucIcy believes i t  is uiililcely that mateiially diffeient 
resiilts will occur iii future pel iods when these amounts are subsequently billed. 

I Jiibilletl ie \  enties for Duke Energy ICeiitucky a t  December 3 1 ,  2006 and 200.5 were $22 million and $27 million, 
respectively 

A F U I X  , which iepresents tlic estimated debt and equity costs of capital funds iiecessai y to iliiaiice the construction 
of‘ iiew I egulated fr,cilities, consists of two components, an equity compoiieiit and a n  inteiest component. Tlie equity 
conipoiieiit is a noli-cash itciii. AFUDC is capitalized as a component of Propel ty, I’laiit aiid Equipiiient cost, with 
offsetting credits to the Consolidated Statements of Operatiom. After coiistruclioii is completed, Dulte Eiieigy 
lieiitucby is pei niitted to iecover these costs tluougli inclusion in the rate base aiid in the depreciation provision. Tlie 
total amoiiiit of AFUDC included in tlie Statements of Operations for tlie year ended Deceinbei 31, 2006 was $1.4 
inillion Tlie total amount of AFUDC included in  tlie Statements of Operations was $.8 millioii in 200.5. 
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I)ulee Energy 1Ceiit:iclcy 1 ecogiiizes emission allowances in earnings as they are consumed or sold. Gains or losses 011 

salrs of recoveiabls. eniission allowances ale included in tlie rate structure and are deferred as a regulatory asset or 
liability FiitLiie rates charged to retail customers are impacted by any gain or loss on sales of enlissioii allowances. 
rmission allow~i~ices are recorded as liitniigible ctssefs on tlie Balance Sheet. Purchases and sales of emissioii 
allowances are presented gloss as investing activities on the Statements of Cash Flows. 

As  a I esult of Dulct. Eneigy’s merger with Cineigy, Duke Enei gy ICentuclcy entered into a tax sliai iiig agieement 
\\[it11 I~ulce Eneigy, wlieie the sepaiate return method is used to allocate benefits to tlie subsitliai ies whose 
invesrments 01 I esi,lts of operLitioiis piovide these tax benefits The accounting foi income taxes essentially 
Izpi eseiits tlie iiico:ne Lases that Dike Energy ICentucky ~ ~ o u l d  incui. if Dulce Energy ICentuclcy were a separate 
company filing its own tax return. The current tas sharing agreement Duke Energy Kentucky lias with Duke Eiieigy 
is substantially tlie same as tlie tax sharing agreement betweeii Duke Energy I<eiihiclcy aiid Ciiiergy prior to tlie 
iiiei gcr. 

h4anageiiient e\ aluates and  iecords contingent tax liabilities and related interest based on the probability of 
Li1tiiii;itely sustaiiiiiig tlie tax tlecluctions 01’ income positions. Management assesses tlie probabilities of successfidly 
cielmdiiig tlie tas deductions or income positions based ~ipoii statutory, ,judicial or administrative authority. 

Segiii eirt Repoi tiiig 

As a iesult of tlie iiieiger with Duke Energy, effective i n  tlie second quarter of2006, Dulte Eiieigy ICentucIcy adopted 
new husiness segments, ;iiid the segment performance iiietisiire lias been changed to ea1 nings before interest and 
t:iscs ( E  BIT) fioiii continuing operations. As a result, certain prioi, period amounts have been retxoactively ad,justed 
to  ( oiiform to the new segment presentation and iiieasures. 

SFAS K O  13 1 ,  “D;sclos/ii.rs iiboiit Segiizerits of (117 Eiitelpriw arid Related 1i~fariizcitioii” (SFAS No. 13 l ) ,  
establishes staniinrlls for a public coiiil~any to ieport financial and descriptive infoniiatioii about its ieportable 
operating segmcnts in annual and intei iiii financial reports. Operating segiiieiits are coiiipoiieiits of an enterprise 
about which sepaiate iiiiancial infoi iiiatioii is available and evaluated regularly by tlie chief operating decision 
makei” i n  rleciding lio\n to allocate resources and evaluate performance. Two or 11101 e opeiating segments may be 
aggregaieii into a s:iigle iepoi table segment provided aggiegation is consistent witli tlie objective and basic 
priiiciplzs of” SFAS No. 13 I ,  if the segiiieiits have siiiiilai economic chaiacteristics, and the segments are consideled 
similar iiiidei CI itei ia provided by SFAS No. 13 1.  Tlieie is no aggregation within Ddce Energy I<entiiclcy’s defined 
business segments. SFAS No. 13 1 also establishes standaids and related disclosures about the way tlie operating 
segiiieiils were cletcrmiiied, pi oducts and  sei vices, geographic areas and majoi customers, diffel ences between tlie 
n1e;isiireiiients used in repoi ting segmcnt i~ifoiiiiation and those used in the general-puipose financial statenieiits, and 
changes il l  the iiieasu1eiiient of segment amounts from period to period. The description of Duke Energy I<enhicky’s 
iepoi iahle segments, consistent with how business results are reported iiiteinally to management and the disclosuie 
of segment iiiCoriiiatioii in accoidaiice with SFAS No. 13 1 ,  are presented in Note 4. 

l‘lic financial stateiiients have been reclassified to conform with Dulce Eneigy’s format. Ceitain otliei pi ior period 
amounts Iia1.e been reclassified to coiilorm to cuirent yeai presentation. 

l’hc following iiew accounting stanctaid weie adopted by I.)uke Energy I<eiituclcy diiriiig tlie year ended 
I)ecenil-rei 3 1 ,  2000 and tlie iiiipact of such adoption, if applicable, lias been presented in the accompanying 
I inxicia1 Statements: 
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SFAS N o .  1.78, “Eriiployer. ‘s rlccoirritirrg for- Def?ried Beliefifit Perisioii ( / / id Other- Postre/irernent Pltriis., nii 
cririmrlnieirf of FASB Stnterrrerrts No 87, 88, 106, orid /32(R) *’ (SFAS No 1.56’) . In October 2006, the FASB issued 
SFAS K O  1 SS, which changes the iecognition and disclosure pi,ovisions and measurement date requirements foi an 
e m p l o y c ~ ’ ~  accounting for defined benefit pension and otliei postretilenient plans. ‘The recognition and disclosure 
provisions req[tiie < i n  employcr 10 ( 1 )  iecognize tlie fiindetl status of a benefit plan-nieasurcd as the difference 
betwcen plan asset; at fail, value a i d  tlie benefit obligation-in its statement of financial position, (2) recognize as a 
component o f  Other Cornpi eliensivc Income (OCI), net of tax, the gains or losses atid prior seri;ice costs or ciedits 
thai arise cluring tlie period but are iiot recognized as components of net peiiodic benefit cost, and (3) disclose i n  tlie 
notzs to financid s:atements c:ertain additional inrormation. SFAS No. 158 does not change the amounts recognized 
in tlie income siate,neiit as  net periodic benefit cost Duke Energy I<enhicky is required to initially recognize tlie 
funded status of its allocated poi tion of Cinergy’s defined benefit pension and other postretirement plans and to 
piovide tlie required atlditional disclosures as of December 3 1, 2006 (see Note 16). Retrospective application is not 
pel tiiitted ‘Tlie adoption of SI:AS No. 158 recognition and disclosuie provisions resulted in an inciease in regulatory 
assets ol’$22 niilli(m and a n  iiiciease in total liabilities of appioximately $22 million as of December .31, 2006. Tlie 

01 c ash ilows 
adoptioti of SFAS Yo. 1.58 did not have any  impact on Dulte Energy Kentucky’s consolidated results of opeiqt‘ ‘ 1011s 

I!ntlet the measuretiieiit ihie  t ecjuiremeiits o f  SFAS No 1 jS, an  employer is reqiiiied to measuie defined bcnefit 
plan assets and  obl!gations as of the date of‘tlie employel’s fiscal year-end statement of financial position (with 
limited exceptions) I-Iistoi ically, Dul<e Enei gy I<entucky lias iiieasured its plan assets and obligations up to time 
months 111 io] to tlie f i sca l  yea] -end, as allowed under tlie authoritative accounting literatuie. Tlie nieasurenicnt date 
izq,iii enient is cffe:tive 101 tlie yeai- endiiig December 3 1, 2008, and early application is encoui-aged. Duke Energy 
Keiitircliy intends to adopt the change in measureinent date effkclive Janiiai y 1, 2007 by remeasuring plan assets and 
benelit obligations as of tha t  date, pursuant to tlie transition requirements of SFAS No. 158. Net periodic benefit cost 
foi tlie three-montli petiod between September 30, 2006 and December 31, 2006 will be recognized, net of tax, as a 
separlite adjwtiiient olretained earnings as of Jaii~iary 1, 2007. Additionally, changes in plan assets and plan 
obligations bet\veeii Scpteniber 30, 2006 and December 3 1, 2006 not related to net periodic benefit cost will be 
rmogni./ed, net of tax, as a n  adjustment to OCl. 

l’lic follo\ving iien accounting stanclaids weie adopted by Duke Energy l<entucl<y during tlie year ended 
[)eceiiibei 3 1 ,  200.i and the impact of such adoption, if applicable, has been piesenled in the accoiiipanying 
I in;incial Statements: 

/.IN 47 “,-/c(:o//iitii,g fiw Coirrlitiorrol As,\e/ Re/iiwiren/ O ~ l ~ g ~ / i o i r s ” j  I n  March 2005, the FASB issued FIN 47, 
\vliicli clarifies [lie accounting foi, conditional asset retirement obligations as used in SFAS No. 143. A conditional 
asset t etirenient obligation is :in unconditional legal obligation to perform an asset ietirenient activity i n  which tlie 
timing a n d  (or) me:liotl of setrlement are coiiditional on a future event that may or may not be within tlie contiol of 
the eiitily. Tlieiefoi e, a n  entity is requiied to recognize a liability foi tlie fair value of a conditional asset retirement 
obligation uiidei SFAS No. 14.3 if tlie fair value of the liability can be reasonably estimated. Tlie provisions of FIN 
47 wcre el‘fectii e for Jhlce Eiieigy I<eiitucky as of December 3 1, 2005, and  tlie adoption of FIN 47 did not have a 
malei ial iiiipact on Duke Eneigy Kentucky’s consolidated results of opeiations, cash flows or financial position. 

1 lic lollo\viiig iiew accounting standaidb have been issiied, bill have not yet been atloptcd by Dulte Eneigy I<enhic.ky 
as of Dccenibei 3 1 2000. 

S F ,  15 N o  15.5, “.4( coiiri/ing jor Cer tnrri Hyh id  Frrinricinl /risira,irierrt~--aii niiierrdrient of FASU S/c/terrieritb No 133 
oritl 14‘0” (SFAS N o  15.5) I n  February 2006, the FASB issued SFAS No. 155, which amends SFAS No. 133, “ 
Ac( oririr/irg/or DeiYvn/ii~e /iiJ/rior?eiit$ cind Hetlgirig Acti1vtie.s ” and SFAS No. 140, ‘‘ ilccouritiiig fiw Trurrsf&*s niid 
Serviciirg o j  Frircrriciul A ue/s ezricl El-tiii~irishriieritJ-~ of 1,iabilities .” SFAS No. 155 allows financial instriuiients that  
ha\  e tmibedcled clei ivati\w to be accounted for at fail value at acquisition, at  issuance, or when a pieviously 
iecogiiizeil linancial instrument is subject to a renieasiii ement (new basis) event, on a n  iiisti.iiiiiciit-by-instriiiiieiit 
basis, in cases i n  c\ liicli a clerivative would otlier\vise have to be bifiiicatcd SFAS No. 15.5 is effective foi Duke 
Lncsrgy Keniucky loi a l l  linancii~l instiniiients acquired, issued, or sub,ject to remeasureinent after Januai,y 1, 2007, 
a n d  for certain hybrid financial instruments that have been bifurcated prior to the effective date, for which the effect 
is to be ieportetl as a ctiiiiiilative-eflect adjustment to beginning retained earnings. I>ul<e Energy ICenhicky does not 
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anticipate tlie ;idopiioii of SFAS No. 155 will have any iiiateiial impact on its consolidated results of operations, 
cash flows or linancial position. 

S F,-IS No 1.56, “A( coirniiiigjor- Servicriig OJ Frriaiicirrl As seis-cin triiicriclriieirt o j  F.4SB Stntcriierit No. I40 ‘ I  (SFAS 
No 156)  In March 2006, tlie FASB issued SFAS No. 1.56, which amends SFAS No. 140, “ i l c co i i i i t ~ i i gJb r  
7i-om f2r.s o i i d  Serwcirrg o j  Fiiiaiicicil AsretJ arid Estirigrrr~hii~eiit~ o j  L,icrbiliries .” SFAS No. 156 requires 
iscognition of a sei viciiig asset 01 liability when an entity enters into arraiigeiiients to service financial instriiiiients 
in  cei tain situations. Such servicing assets or servicing liabilities are required to be iiiitially ineastired at fair value, il‘ 
practicable. SFAS Yo. 156 also allows a n  entity to subsequently iiieastire its serviciiig assets 01 seiviciiig liabilities 
using eiiher an  amortintion iiietliotl or a fair value method. SFAS No. 156 is effective for Dulte Energy I<entuclty as 
of JaiiLiai)r 1, 2007. and must be applied prospectively, except that where an entity elects to ieiiieasure separately 
recognixil exisling ai-] angements and reclassify cei tain a\cailable-for-sale securities to trading secw ities, any effects 
nitist be rcpoi teil as a cuiiiulat ive-el fect adjustment to retained earnings. Dulte Eneigy ICentuclty does not anticipate 
the adoption of SF.‘\S Vu. 150 will have any material impact 011 its consolidated results of operations, cash flows or 
liiiancia I position. 

SF,IS No I.i7, “Fciii, i’lrlitc Meosiir erire/rt,$ ” (SFAS No 1.57). I n  Septeiiibei 2006, tlie FASB issued SFAS No 157, 
wliicli defincs fair value, establishes a fiamework for measuring fail value in GAAI), and expands disclosuies about 
KLiir v h e  iiieasiiieiiieiits. SFAS No 157 does iiot requiie any iiew fail, value iiieasiireiiieiits. However, in some 
c a m  tlie applicatisn of SFAS No. 157 may change Dulte Energy I<entuclty’s current practice lor iiieasuriiig and 
clisclosiiig fair \dues  iiiidei oiliei accounting IiroiioLiiiceiiieiits that ieqtiiie or periiit fair value measureiiients. Foi 
I)uke Energy I<ent.iclty, SFAS No. 157 is effective as of Januury 1, 2008 and must be applied prospectively except 
iii rei taiii cases Duke Eiieigy I<eiitucky is cunently evaluating the iiiipact of adopting SFAS No. 1.57, and caimot 
c u i  i,eiitlv estimate ihe impact of SFAS No. 157 011 its consolidated results of opemtioiis, cash flows or fiiiaiicial 
position 

SF,-IS No 159, “TI e Fair I’diie Optioi i  fbr Fiiraiicinl itssvts ~ 1 7 d  Fiiinircinl Licibilifies ” (SFAS No 159) In February 
20b7. tlie FASY, issued SFAS No. 159, \vliich peiinits eiitities to choose to iiieasure many financial instrtiiiients and 
ceriain otliei items at fail value. Foi Diike Energy Kentucky, SFAS No. 159 is effective as of January 1, 2008 aiid 
\vi11 ha\:e no iinpact on amouiits presented for periods prior to the effective date. Duke Energy ICentuclty cannot 
c u i w i t l y  estimute tlie impact of SFAS No. 1.59 on its consolidated iesults of operations, cash flows 01 finaiicial 
position and lias IIC t yct iieteriiiined whether or not it will choose to iiieasiiie items subject to SFAS No. 1.59 at fail 
\ aliie 

/ ’ I N  48, “ Icco i i i i t i r rg /o i .  Uirct : r t r i i i i i )~ i i i  Iiiconie Tmm-air iirteipretrrtiorr of FASB Stntciiieiit No. 109” (FIN 48). I n  
J illy 2006 tlie F4S13 issued FIN 48, which piovitles guidance on accounting for income tax positions about which 
L)uke Energy Kent icky lias conclucled there is a level of iiiicei taintp with respect to the recognition in its financial 
statemeiits. FIN 48 prescribes a minimum recognition tlmsliold a tax position is required to meet. Tax positions are 
tlefiiicd vcry broadly and  include not only tax deductions and credits but also decisions not to file i n  a particular 
j u i  isdiction, as well as tlie taxability ol‘tiansactions. Dulte Energy ICeiituclty will implement this new accounting 
siaiidwtl effective .!anuai y 1, 2007. The impleinentation will impact a variety of balance sheet line items, iiiclutling 
Lkf’ei red inc onie taxes, Taxes accrued, and Othei Lhbilities. LJpoii iiiipleiiieiitatioii of FIN 48, Dulce Energy 
I<eiitiicl,y will ieflc ct interest expense related to taxes as interest expense, in Other Iiicoine and Expenses, net in tlie 
Statement o1‘Open:tions. In atldition, accounting foi this standard aftei Januai y 1, 2007 will invo1i.e ail evaluation to 
determine if any  c l a n g s  have occurred that would iiiipact the existing uncertain ta.x positions as well as determining 
\vIietliei any iiew tax positions ale uiicei tain. Any impacts resulting from the evaluation of existing uncertain tax 
positioiis o r  fioin tlie iecognition of lien! uncertain tax positions would inipact iiicoine tax expense aiid interest 
eul~ense in tlie Statimeni of Opeiations, with offsetting impacts to tlie balance sheet line items described above. 
Ifulte Eiieigy I<ent.icky is still in the process of reviewing tlie impacts of this standard a n d  expects tlie adjustment 
\vi11 be imm;itci ial. 

/St’ iVo ,-I CG ,-lIR-lt ‘AcL”oicntli/g for Plciii~ied M q b r  Adiiiiiteiroiice i lc f iv i t ies I ’  (FSP No A IJG AIR-I) In Septembei 
20Q6, tlie FRSB St iff issued FSP No. AUG AIR-1“ This FSP prohibits the use of tlie accrue-in-advance method of 
accounting ioi plaiiiietl m j o i  iiiaintenaiice activities in aiinual and interim financial repoiting periods, if no liability 
is iequiietl to be re8;ortled for an asset retirement obligation based on a legal obligatioii for which tlie eveiit 
obligating the entity has occui red. The FSP also lequires disclosures regarding the method of accounting for plaiinetl 
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iiiajoi niaintenance activities and tlie effects of implementing tlie FSP. Tlie guidance i n  this FSP is effective foi 
[hiice Eiiergy I<ent:icky as of January I ,  2007 and will be applied retrospectively for all fiiiaiicial statements 
presented Dulce Eiieigy ICentucky does not anticipate the adoption of FSP No. AUG AIR-1 will have aiiy material 
impact on its consolidated iesults ol‘ operations, cash flows or financial position. 

1:17% I s  \ l ie  iVo 06-3, “Hoii* l i nes  Collecterlfi~o~ii Customers and Reiiiittecl to Go\~rrrlnieiilnl Aiithorities Shoulrl Be 
I~)i*~sriiiorl iir tlici liiconie Stotciilt?rit (That I s ,  Groxs iw.siiS Net Piweiitrrtioii) ” (ElTF No 06-3) . In June 2006, tlie 
EI1.F reLiched a coiiseiisus on EITF No. 06-3 to address aiiy tax assessed by a govei iiineiital authoi ity that is directly 
imposed on a reveiiue-pi oducing transaction between a seller and a customer and may include, but are not limited to, 
salcs, use, vnluc added, aiicl some excise tases. For taxes within the issue’s scope, the coiiseiisus requires that eiitities 
piesent such Lases on citliei a gloss (i.e. included in reveiiiies and costs) or net (i.e. exclude from revenues) basis 
accordiirg to t h v i i  accounting policies, which should be disclosed. If such taxes are reported gloss and a1.e 
sigiiit’icanl, entities slirnild disclose tlie amounts of those taxes. Disclosuies may be iiiacle on an aggregate basis. The 
conse~isiis is efltctlve for Duke Eneigy ICentucky beginning January 1, 2007. Dulte Energy ICentucky does not 
anticipate the atlopiion or EI’IF No. 06-3 will have any material impact on its results ofoperations, cash flows or 
financia I position. 

On April 3 ,  2006, the picviously announced iiiergei between Duke Enei,gy and Ciiiergy was consummated (see Note 
1 foi xIJitiona1 infmiiation on tlie meiger). For accounting purposes, tlie effective date of the iiiergei \vas April 1 ,  
2006. 1 he merger combines {lie Duke Energy and Cinergy i egulated franchises as well as deregulated genelation i n  
lhe Midweslern United Stales (Midwest). See Note 5 ioi- discussion of iegulatory impacts ofthe nieigei. In 
coiin~ction with the iiieiger, Dulce F.nergy issued 1.56 shales of Duke Energy coimiioii stock foi each outstanding 
shale 01 C inergy coiiiiiioii stock. which iesulted in the issuance of approsimately 3 13 million shares of Dulte Eiieigy 
coiii~i~oti stock. Based oil the maikct price of Duke Eiiei.gy comnion stock dtring the period, including the two 
ti atliiig days belbre, though the two tiatling days after, May 9, 200.5, tlie date Dulte Eiiergy and Ciiiergy announced 
the merger, tlie tiaiisaction is valued at approximately $9.1 billion. 

3. 

111 J ~ I I L I ~ ~ ) ~  2006, Duke E,iiergy Ohio contributed ta Duke Eiieigy ICentuclcy 100 peiceiit of its ownership inteiest in 
one genciatiiig t in i l  and one peaking plant with a coiiibiiied capacity of 727 megawatts (MWs) and its 69 perceiit 
iiiteiest in another generating station with an owned capacity of 4 14 MWs, as folloivs: 

1’r;insfcr O F  Gencratiiig Assets From Duke Energy Ohio to Duke Energy I<entucky 

Owitersliip O\vlled 
Gciieratiiig I’lniii Locntioii 1 ntcrcst Firel Type M\V Capacity 

East I3c:ld Boonc Cotinty, I<entucl(y 69 Yo Coal 
R4i:iiiii 1,oit I-lami ltoii C.oniitv. Ohio 100 ( 1 )  Coal 

414 
16.3 

l ~ l i ~ ~  tiansaction was elfective as of January 1, 2006 at net book value. Tlie filial required regulatoiy appioval foi tlie 
plaiit transfer \\.as ieceived in November 200.5 ii-om tlie SEC Lrnder the Public Utility Holding Company Act of 
1935 The Kentiicky Public Service Conimission (ICPSC) and tlie FERC had earliei issued orders approving aspects 
of  the tiansaction. See Note 5 for rletails on Duke Energy ICentuclcy rate pioceedings. 

I n  ( oiuicctioii vith the transfer of these ussets, Duke Energy ICentucky accepted a capital contribution from Duke 
E:nc.rgy Ohio and asstlliied cei tain liabilities of Duke Eneigy Ohio. In particular, Duke Energy Kentucky agreed to 
assume horn Duke Energy Ohio all payment, pel formance, and other obligations ol‘ Duke Energy Ohio, with respect 
to ( i )  cel taiii tax-exempt pollution control debt currently shown on tlie balance sheet of Duke Energy Ohio, (ii) 
ceriaiii of Duke Energy Ohio’s outstanding ifccoztrifs pq’c/b/e fo tdf?licitetl con1/7ctnies, and (iii) certain defemd tas 
liabilities related to tlic assets Lhlce Energy I<enhicky has repaid the tax-exempt obligations with tlie proceeds fioiii 
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a n  ssiiaiice of tax-cxeiiipt debt by Duke Energy ICeiitucky. The accounts payable obligations were iepaid initially 
with the proceeds lroni short-term borrowings and evenhially through the issuance of long-terni senior unsecured 
debeiitirres. The follo\ving table wiiiniarizes this transaction f’or Dtilte Eiieigy ICenLucky: 

(111 thorlsallcls) 

Assets Received 
Geiiei atiiig Assets 
I llvell tory 

L iabililies i\ssuiiietl 

Tot;il Assets I<eccivetJ 

Debt 
Accoiiiits payable to allilialed compaiiics 
Deltiied tax liabilities 
Other 

rota I L i n  bi I i t  ies Assii iiied 

( oiit i  ibutcd Capital Irom Diiltc Energy Oliio 

S 375,Sl I 
23,579 

$ 399,190 

x 76,720 
90,280 
90,360 

1.060 
S 259,329 

S I 4 O L U  

As part ol‘tliis tr.aii.;action, D~ilte Energy Ohio and Dulce Energy Kentucky terminated the long-term wholesale 
polver coiitrxt uiicler which Duke Eneigy Ohio had p1,eviously supplied power to Duke Energy ICentucky. Further, 
Duke Enei gy Ohio also proposed to supply and Duke Energy Kentucky agreed to purchase back-up power from 
IMie  Energy Ohio for planned and  inp planned outages at the East Bend and Miaiili Foi t plants tllrough Decenibei 
3 1 ,  2000 piii sunnt io a diali contract. The p i  ties never executed this draft contract and Duke Energy Kentucky 
currently purchases back-up power, when needed, though tlie Midwest IS0 energy markets. Under the proposed 
settleiiient in  its electric rate case (see Note 5) , Duke Energy ICentucky will continue to use its best efforts to 
procure back-up power. supply and to obtain FERC appro\*al, if necessary, as soon as possible. The revenue increase 
in the pi oposed se tkmen t  iecoi’ers all clemand charges for back-up power. Effective on and after January 1, 2007, 
Duke Energy 1Cent.icky will iecovei energy charges for back-up po\ver consistent with tlie ICPSC’s fuel adjustment 
cost iegiilations 1)ulte Energy [Ceiitticliy filed during the fii st quartei 2007, a least cost back-up supply plan with 
the ICPSC ‘The KPSC issued an order approving the back up supply plan which eliminates rislcs of iecovery limits 
that may have resulted under the tei nis of the back-up s ~ p p l y  plan proposed with the tiansfer of these assets. 

4 .  Uusiness Seglnents 

I n  c oiijunction witli thc mergci with Duke Energy, effective with the second quarter of 2006, Duke Eneigy 
I<eiitucl\y adopted tlie new business seginent that nianageiiient believes propedy aligns tlie various opei ations of 
Duke Energy I<eiit.iclcy with how the chief operaking decision maker views the business. Prior period segment 
iiifoiiiiation has been iecast to conforiii to the new segment stiucture. Accordingly, Duke Eneigy ICenhicky has tlie 
lollo\vii:g iepoi 1ab.e business segment: 

Franchised Electric ant1 Gas consists of regulated elect] ic generation and regulated 
e I ec t 1 ic a lid gas trans ni i ss ion and dis t I-ibu t i on systems 

Duke Eiiergy Kent icky’s cliicf operating decision maker iegularly ieviews financial inro‘olniation about the business 
t i n i i  in deciding how to allocate resouiccs and evaluate perforniance. The business unit is consiclered a reportable 
szgiiicnl iintlei SFnS No. 13 1 “  l’lieie is no aggiegation within Duke Eiieigy Kentucky’s clefiiietl business segment. 

Prior to the iiieigei with Duke Enerpy, Dulte Eneigy Kentucky opeiated a single business unit, liegulated, which 
\vas consideied a rc’pol table szgment under SFAS No. 13 1 : 

0 Ileguloted - consisted of Duke Eneigy Kentucky’s regulated genelation, tiansmission and distiibutioii 
operations. 

Franchised Electric and Gas plans, constructs, operates and maintains Dulce Energy Kentucky’s generation, 
ti aiismission and distribution systems and delivers gas and electric energy to consuiiiers. 



l'hr izniaindei of 1)ul;e Energy ICentucky's operations is presented as "Other." While i t  is iiot considered a business 
segmeiil, Othei priiiiai ily includes ceitaiii allocated corpoiate goveriiance costs. 

Maiiageiiient e\*aluates segiiieiit pel foi iiiaiice based 011 EBIT which i'epresents all profits from continuing operations 
(boll1 opeiating and iioii-openiting) befot,e deducting inLeiest and taxes C:ash, cash equivalents and short-tei 111 

iiivzsiiiiznts ale  iiianagetl cenri.ally by Ciiiei gy and Duke Energy, so the inteiest anti dividend income on those 
balaiices are exclutled fioiii scgment EBIT. 

Ilusiiitss Segniciit 1)nt I 

Scgriient EUIT/ 
Coiisolitlntcd 1)epreciatioii Capital and 

llnallilintetl Income I)efore a I1 d Investment Segmenf 
Reveil lies I iicoiiie 'I3 xes Aiiiortizelioii Espcriditiires Assets 

(ill tlll~li,s~lllds) 

) 'ear  I: i it letl Dcccltil~er 31, 2006 

S 404,452 rj 40,065 S; 37,740 S; 65,096 S; 980.131 
I,. 

I o1:iI icpuitablc sey neni 
404,452 40,065 37,719 65,096 980.13 I 

Tok11 c oiisolitlatctl 
s 404,452 X 17,913 X 37,749 X 65,096 tF 980.131 

1'e;ir 1:iitlccI Dcccinber 31, 2005 

1;i ainchisell l i lecii ic  
s 388,127 s 34,132 16: 20,625 X 47,144 S; 518.214 

388,127 34, I32 20,625 47, I44 518.214 

- (7,276) __ - - 

-. (6,903) 

__ 2,515 

'1.ot;iI izpoitablc seg iierii 

orllcl 

liiteiesi expc iiss 

iiiteicsi i i icoinc atid ol1i:i 

'l'oid t oiisolitlaicd 

__ __ - 

__ - __ - 
s 388,127 S; 22,478 9; 20,625 16: 47,144 S 518,214 

All ol'Dul;e Energy ICeiihicky's revenues are geiierated and its long-lived assets are invested domestically. 



I)uke Energy I<eiitLicl<y’s legdated opeiations are sub,ject to SFAS No. 7 1. Accordingly, Duke Energy I<enhicky 
reccxds assets and liabilities that result fi om the regulated ratemalting process that would not be recorded under 
GAAP 101. non-reg.ilated entities. (For ftirtlier information see Note 1 .) 

I h t  Ice 1~:llerg). Kelt tu cky 

liegitlatory Assets 
i\cu ticd I’eiision atid Post I leti iemciit 
hktgci Costs 
I k l e r i c d  l’ioject Costs 
t M1ct 

rota1 Repitlaioiy Asaeis 

1)eceiiibcr 31, 
2006 2005 

(i ii tliousa ntls) 

fi 21,560 S: 
4,453 1,453 
1.312 61 1 
4,414 3,326 

9 31,739 ‘i; 5,390 

Ikgulaioi y Li a b  i I i tics 
I<ei i io\  a1 Costs fi 16,9.37 S; 26,S26 
i\iiioiiiits i ~ u c  lioiii (‘ustomeis - Inconic I axcs ‘ I ’  2,238 I,S87 
()\her 257 325 

rota1 Repttlaiot y Linbilitics fi 29.432 ‘i; 29,038 

i\iiiIioi izcif toi ~<ccovet y “I: x 6,906 S; 1,770 

( I )  l%is iiiiiottiit is tlie iiet olamounts iecotdcd in 
I<egulatoiy Assets - i\iiiounts due to Customcis - 
Iiicotiic T;iscs atid Iiepulatoiy Liabilities - Ainouiits due 
lion1 ( itsionleis - Income rases 

( 7 )  As 01‘ IDecemIxi 31 ,  2006, these ainotiiits ate being 
~ c c o v c t e d  tliiougli i-atcs chntgetl to cktstoiiiets ovei 
peiiodb tanging Itom 3-10 ycais 

I(eg1rlaloIy ,t1eigei. Ap”l“‘”’’nls 

As discussed i n  Note1 and Note 2, on April 3, 2006, tlie merger between Duke Energy and Cinergy was 
consummated to cieatc a newly formed company, Duke Energy I-Iolding Coi-p. (subsequently reiiamed Duke Eiieigy 
Coi poratioii). As a condition io the iiieiger approval, the ICPSC requii,ed that certain merger related savings be 
shared \villi consumers i n  I<eiitucky. The commissions also required Dulte Energy Kentucky to meet additional 
conditions. Key elements of these conditions include: 

0 The KPSC requiied ihat Didto Energy ICentncky ixo\,ide $S million in rate reductions to Duke Energy 
Kentucky customers o\’ei live yeais, ending when new iates are established in the next rate case after 
January 1. 2008. As of Decemher .3 1,  2006, Duke Energy ICentticky has rehiriled $1 million to custoiiiers 
on h i s  iatz rediictioii. 

In addition, the FEIiC appioved the niergei without conditions. I n  Jaii~iary 2006, Public Citizen’s Eneigy Program, 
CIitizcns Action Coalition of Indiana, Inc., Ohio Paitners for Affordable Energy and Southein Allimce for Clean 
Lnrrgy xquestcd 1 d i e u  iiig or  the FERC approval. I n  February 2006, the FERC issued an ordei granting rehearing 
of I T R C ’ s  o ide i  f(,r flirtliei consideration, On February 5, 2007, after further consideration, the FERC issued an 
ordei disnlissiiig tlie i’eqtiest for a rehearing 

Duke E/1cJrgjl IieIitucXj) GUS Rate (.'rise.\ 

I n  2002. the ICPSC approved Duke Eneigy Kentucky’s gas base I ate case which included, among other things, 
izcovery of cosls ajsociatetl \\/it11 an  acceleiated gas main replacement pograni.  The approval authorized a tiaclting 
iiiec1i:inism to 1 ecovei certain costs including depreciation and a rate of return on the program’s capital expendittii es. 
I’hc ICeiitucky ikttorney General appealed to tlie Fraidtlin Circuit Court the I<PSC’s approval of the traclting 
meclimisiii as \vel1 as die ICPSC’s subsequent approval of annual rate ad,justments under this tiaclting nieclianism In 
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2005, both r>ulte Energy ICcniuclcy aiid tlie ICPSC requested that the couit dismiss these cases. At tlie present time, 
I)rrlce Eiteigy ICent!tclty cannot predict the tining or outcome of h i s  litigation. 

I n  Febriiai-y 200.5, l h k e  Energy ICentuclcy filed a gas base rate case with the ICPSC requesting approval to continue 
the trncking mecliaiiisiii and for a $14 inillion annual increase in base rates. A portion of the i i icmse is attribritable 
to iecoveiy of tlie (uirziit cosi of the accelerated main ieplacement program i n  base rates. In Decenibei, 2005, tlie 
I<PS(’ approvet1 an aiiiiual late increase of $8 nillion and re-appioved the tracking mechanism tlxough 201 1, 111 
lehruai y 2006, the ICentiicky Attorney General appealed the ICPSC’s order to the Franklin Circuit Coui t, claiming 
that the older iiiiproyei ly allows Duke Energy ICentucky to iiicrease its rates lor gas main replacement costs in 
between genet a i  rate cases, and also claiming that the order inipioperly allows Drilte Energy I<ent~rcky to earn il 
ietuiii oil iiivestme:it foi the cosis rccovered undei, tlie tracking iiiecliaitism which pel iiiits Duke Enei,gy ICentucky to 
recovci its gas mai!i ieplaccmeiit costs. At this time, Drilce Energy ICentucky cannot predict tlie outcoiiie of this 
litigat ioii. 

I n  May 2000, D L I ~ c ~ ~  Enei gy Kentucky filed a n  application foi, aii iiiciease in its base electiic rates. .The application, 
\diicli sought an ili:reiisc of approximately $67 iiillion iii revenue, or approxiniately 28 percent, was filed pursuant 
to the KPSC’s 200; Order nppruviiig tlie tiansfer 01’1,100 MW of geneiating assets from Duke Energy Ohio to 
[)like Eiieigy Kent,iclty. I n  Decembei 2006, the IWSC appioved a settleinelit agrecment with all  parties to this 
pioceeding 1 esolviiig a l l  the issues I aisecl. Among other tlrings, the settlement agreement piovitled foi a $49 iiiillioii 
iiici ease i n  1)uke Energy ICentuclcy’s base electric iates and reinstitution of the fuel cost iecovei y ineclianisiii which 
had beeii li-ozen siiice 2001. 111 PIpi il 2007 the KPSC issued a n  ordci approving Duke Eiiergy ICentucky’s back-up 
s l l p  p 1 y p la 11 

I n  April 2006, the 1;ER.C issued aii ordei oii the Midwest ISO’s revisioiis to its Transiiiission and Energy Markets 
l’arifls legaiding its RSG. Tlie FERC found that the Midwest IS0 violated the tariffs when i t  did not charge RSG 
costs to viitual supi~ly offeis. The FERC, among other things, ortlered the Midwest IS0  to recalculate tlie rate aiicl 
make 1 efiinrls to customers, u ith interest, to reflect the correct allocation of RSG costs. Dulce Energy Shared 
Sei vices, on beliall of Diilte Eneigy ICeiihicky, has filed a Request for Reheai iiig, and in October 2006, tlie FERC 
issuetl a n  ordei which, aiiioiig ot11eI things, granted reheai ing oii the issue of iefunds. Tlie FERC stated that it  would 
not requiie iecalcu ation of the  iates and, as such, refunds are no longer ieqtiiied. A s  a result, Dtke Energy 
I<entucl,y does not believe that this issue will have a iiiateiial effect oii its financial position, cash flows or iesults of 
opeiations. 

6. 

1)uke Eneigy I<ent:icl<y and Dayton Powel & L,iglit ,jointly own a11 electric geiierating unit in I<.entucl<y. As of 
[)eceiiiliei 3 1 ,  2000, Duke Energy ICentiicky’s s1iat.e in  tlie jointly-owned plant or facilities \vas as follows: 

Joint Ownership ot’ Generating Facilities 

69 0 ‘XI % 422,947 s 316,000 $ 4,126 

thilce Energy Kent icky’s sliai e of ievenues aiid operating costs of tlie above jointly owiied generating facilities ai e 
iiiclutled within the coi iespoiiding line of the statement of operations. 
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7 .  l~ ico ine  Taxes 

Tlit following details the coiiiponeiits of iiicoiiie tax expense fioiii continuing ope1 atioiis: 

For Years Elltletl 
Deceniber 3 I ,  

2006 2005 
(in t Ii oii sa 11 ds) 

Cui iei i t  income taxes 
Fcdei ai s (292) $ 5,Sl I 
St<l lC ( I  74) 68 I 
1 o t ~ l  ~uiieiit income taxes (466) 6,492 

Delci ietl income t ~ x c s  
Fcrlcial s 7,835 672 
StdtC 1,728 922 
I o t d  delsiied i i icoii ie taxes 9,563 1,594 

Investment tax cicdit ainoi tization (1,082) (253) 

Totd iiicoiiie tax cxpense (benefit) 
pi esciited in Consolitlatcd Statciiients 
0 1  Opciations s 8,015 S 7,833 

Reroiicilialioii of Income Tax Expense 
(15eneiit) at  the US I'etleral Statatory 
Tax Rate to tlic Actual Tax Esi~ense 
( Ikneli t) from Coil t i II ui iig 

I< econ ci I i a t i o n) 
0 p ~ r i ~  1 io 11s (S til t 11 to ry Ri1 te I ' o ~  Y ci1rs Entletl 

Deccniber 3 I ,  
2006 2005 

(in thousands) 

Income tax expense (bciiefit), computed 
a1 the statutory rate 0135% s 6,558 S 7,106 

Statc income tax. nct of fcder a I IncoIllc ' 

t ax  cfrcct 1,010 s, 56 I 
Dt.11i eciation & otiiw PPSLE iclatcd 
dlffclcnccs (336) (5 5 9) 
ITC ;iiiiortiziition (81 2) (253) 
Othci i lc i i is, iict 1,504 778 

1 otnl iiicomc tax  cxpensc (bciiefit) 
fioiii continuing opeiations s 8,015 $ 7,833 
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DUJ ing 2006 Dike Energy ICentticl<y iecorded approximately S 1 .S inillion of tax expense relating to ceitain defeii ed 
tax accounts. This acljtistmeiit is rellectcd in the Statutory Rate Reconciliation in the “Othei items, net.” 

Net Deferred Income ‘Tax Liability 
Com p 011 CII ts December 3 1 ,  

2006 2005 
(hi tliousaiids) 

Delet t ed CI zdiks and otliei l iabi l i t ies s 7,905 5 5,583 
Othei 1,614 1,790 

Total dcfei ied income tax assets 9,519 7,373 

lnvcsliiicnts awl oiher assets 3,342 1,573 
Accelciaietl dcpt eciaiioii rates 153,834 57,21S 
Rcgul;itoi y :issets :inti clefci red debits 359 1,382 

Total dcfc i ie i i  income lax l iabilities 157,535 GO, 173 

l’lir above amo~ints  have beeii classified i n  the Consolidated Balance Sheets as follows: 

Deierretl 7 as Lhbilities December 3 I ,  
2006 2005 

( i l l  thoiisaricls) 

Ctiimit tlefci-i cd tax assets, includetl in 
oihci c i i i  t ciii assets 9i 1,000 s 

Noii-ctirien[ dcfcried t ax  l iabtli[ics (149,016) (5  2 ,  s 00) 

1 o t d  net defcii,cd income t u x  l iabi l i t ies S (148,016) $ (52,SOO) 

Although the outcome or tax  audits is uiicertain, management believes that adequate provisioi~s for inconie and othei 
tnxes have been made for potential liabilities I-esulting rroiii such iiiatteis. Manageiiieiit is not aware of any issues 
for open tax years [ha t  upon filial iesolution are expected to have a mateiial adverse effect 011 Duke Energy 
Kentucky’s consol!dated iesults of operations, cash flows 01 financial position. 

As a 1 esult of tlie Dulcc Etiergy/Cinergy mergei consuiiuiintion, Cinergy and its subsidiaries elitered into a new tax 
shai iiig agreement with l h l t e  Eneigy, m-here the separate return method is used to allocate benefits to the 
subsitliaiies whose in\estments or resitlls 01. opeiations provide these tax benefits. Tliis new agreement with Duke 
Lnergy supeisedes the previous agreemcnt between Cinergy and its subsidiaries. 

8. Asset Retiiwiient Obligations 

I)ulte Eiieigy I<ent:icky applies SFAS No. 143, which addresses linancial accounting and repoitiiig for legal 
obligntions associaied with the letiiement 0 1  tangible long-lived assets and the related asset retiiement costs. The 
staiidnrtl applies to legal obligations associated with the retiieiiient of long-lived assets that iesult lioiii the 
acquisit!on, construction, rlevelopment andioi normal use of the asset. SFAS No. 143 requires that the fair \ d u e  o f a  
liability for a11 asset reriiemeiit obligation be iecognizetl in tlie period in which it is incurred, i f n  reasonable estimate 
of‘f’aii valiie can be iixidc. ‘The fair value of tlie liability is added to the carrying amount of the associated asset. This 
acltlitional cai.iyiiig aiiiount is Lhcn depreciated ovei- the life of the asset. The liability increases due to the passage of 
timi: hased on the time value of money iiiitil tlie obligation is settled. Subsequent to tlie initial rccognition, the 
liability is adjiisted foi any revisions to the expected value of the ietirement obligation (with coi~responding 
adjustments to property, plant, and equipnient), and for accretion of tlie liability due to the passage of time. 
Additioiial depi eckition cxpeiise is I ecorded prospectively for any propel ty, plant and equipiiient increases. 
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Asset retii eiiient obligations a t  Ihlce Energy ICenhicky ielate primal ily to the retirement of gas mains, asbestos 
abatemenr ai cei taiii gcnerating stations and closure ant1 post-closure activities of lalidfills 

I lpoii adoption of SFAS No. 143, Duke Energy I<entucky's regulated elect1 ic and iegulated natural gas operatioils 
classified removal ;OSIS foi plopel ty that does not have an associated legal retiieiiieiit obligation as a regulatory 
liahility. in accordance with regulatory tieatment uiidei SFAS No. 7 1. The total amount of removal costs included 
ii i  Ikgulaioiy Liabilities on tlie Consolitlated Balance Sheets was $27 million at  both December 31, 2006 and 2005. 

1 lic adoption 0 1  SI AS No I4  3 hac1 no iiiipact on the iiicoiiie of the iegulated elechic and gas opeiations, as the 
effects weie oflset by tlic establishment of iegulatoiy assets and liabilities puisuaiit to SFAS No. 71 

As a iesult oftlie a,loption of FIN 47 in 2005, iiet property, plant and equipment increased by appioximately $1 
millicin, rcgulatory liabilities decreased by approximately $5 million, aiid ARO liabilities iiicreasetl by 
appioxiiiiatelp 56 iilillioii. l'lie adoption of FIN 47 had no iiiipacl on the iiicoiiie of the iegulatet-l electric opeiations, 
a s  tlie el'fects weie offset by the establishment of I-egulatoi y assets and liabilities pursuant to SFAS No. 71. 

' l ' l i c s  p i 0  foriiia cffec'ts of adopting FIN 47, inclucling tlie impact on the balance sheet aiitl net income ale  not 
pie;eiited due to the ininiatelial impact. 

l~l i (~ assct ietiieiiieiit obligation is adjusted each period foi any liabilities incuried or settled during tlie period, 
accretioii expeiise anrl any le! isions matle to tlie estimated cash Ilows. 

Y e a n  Elltietl 
Dcccinber 31 ,  

2006 2005 
(in tlioosn lids) 

5 6,306 E 0 
1,736 - 

(257) __ 
_ _  -18 1 

9 .  Ris Ic iM a11 ii geineii t a 11 d Hetlgi ng Activities and Fin aiici a1 Ins tru iiieii ts 

Duke  Eiiergy I<ent.icky has li i i i i  ted exposu~e to market price changes of f ~ e l  and e~iiission allowance costs  incur^ ed 

I:iic.igy ICentucky does have exposuie to the impact of iiiarlcet fluctuations in the prices of'electi icity, fuel aiid 
eiiiissioii :iIlo\wiices associatcd with its generation output not utilized to sei ve native load 01 coiimiitted load (off- 
sysieiii, wliolesole j io~ 'e i  sales). Exposwe to iiiteiest rate lisle exists as a result of tlie issuance of variable and fixed 
I ate debt. Duke Eiicrgy Kentucky employs established policies and procedures to nianage its rislcs associated with 
these iii;iilcet iliictuations using various coiiiiiiodity and financial derivative instruments, including swaps, futiires. 
forward.: aiid optioiis. 

i i l  custoiiiei s due to the use of cost traclcing and recovei y meclianisiiis in tlie state of I~entucky. Duke 

('1i:inges i n  interest rates expose Dulce E,iiergy ICentucky to iislc as a result of its issuance of variable and fixed rate 
debt i\li(l roiiimeiciai papel Duke Energy ICentucky manages its interest rate exposure by Iiiiiitiiig its vaiiable-ratc 
esposui e to peiceiitagcs of total capitalization and by monitoring the effects of iiiarlcet changes in interest rates 
IhIIce Eiiergy I<ent.iclcy also enters inteiest 1 ate swaps to manage and nlitigate interest rate risk exposure. Duke 
l:ni%igy ICeniucky's inteiest late clei.ivative instiuments anrl related ineffectiveness were not material to its results of 
operations, cas11 flows 01 financial position in 2006 and 200.5. 

l ' l i ( s  1.iii value of ciisli a i d  cash equivalents, accounts receivable, restricted fuiitis liclcl in trust, accounts payable and 
notes payable, c.on?mei~cial paper and tlebt ai e not matei~ially different fi.0111 tlieir cairying amounts because of tlie 
shoit-tei n i  natuie of these insiruiiieiits oI because the stated iates approxiiiinte marliet iates. 
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10. 1nt;iiigible Assets 

l‘lir car] ying amount and acc~imulated aiiioi tization of mtuiigible assets ale as follows: 

Dcccinber 31, I>eccniber 31. 
2006 2005 

(i 11 t Iiorr s a  lids) 

(.I) E,mission allon anc es do not h a w  a contiactual expiration date 

(b) Otlia iepiesents iiitangible assets ielated to pensions which clo not liuve a clefiiiitive life 

I mission allow,inces sold or coIisLiiiieC1 dui iiig the yea] ended Decembei 3 I ,  2006 was $ 1  I .3 million 

Amoi timtion expense For intaiigiblc assets fol Duke Energy I<eiituclcy was immaterial foi the yeais ended 
t)ecernL?ei 3 1. 2000 and 200.5 

Ilir t;ible belov shows the expected amortization expeiise foi the next five years for inlaiigible assets as of 
1)ecembei 3 1, 2000. The espccted amortization expense includes estimates o l  emission allowance consumption and 
estimites of coiisu~iiption ofconiiiioditics such as gas and coal under existing contiacts. The amortization amounts 
discussed be lo\\^ ari: estimates. Actual amoiints may dilfei fioiii these estimates due to such factors as changes in 
coiisuiiiptioii pattei lis, sales 0 1  impairments of emission allowances, additional intangible asset acquisitions and 
other elwits 

2007 2008 2009 2010 201 I 
( i  ii tho us and s) 

$ 9,ss3 $1,275 $1,313 $0 $0 

11. Itelateti I ’ i i y t )  TIa~is;ictions 

I)uke Eiiei,gy I < z n t x l < y  cngages in ielated pal ty transactions. These ti  aiisactioiis ai-e generally pel formed a t  cost and 
i n  acc oirlnnc e with the applicable state and fetleral commission regrrlations. Balaiices clue to 01 due fi-oni related 
p i i  iies included in the Balance Sliects as of Deceiiiber 3 1, 2006 and December 3 1, 2005 are as !allows: 

t)uke Energy Keiit.iclcy is allocated its proportionate share of corpoiate goveinance and other costs by a 
consolitlaiecl aliiliate of Dulte Energy. Duke Energy Keiituclcy is also allocated its proportionate share of otliet. 
coijmiaie govei iiaiice costs fiom a consolidated affiliate of Cineigy. Coiporate governance and other s h e d  
selvic es cos~s ai-e primal ily allocations of coiporate costs, such as htniian resources, legal and accounting fees, as 
well tis other third paity costs 
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1 lie espenscs Jssoiiatcd with ceitaiii allocated corpoiate goveiiiaiice aiid 0 t h  sei\ ice costs foi Duke Eneigy 
Keiittrcl,y foi the tiveli e months ended Ilecembei 31, 2006 and twelve months ended Decenibei 31, 2005 weie as 
f 011o\vs 

Dcccnibcr 31, 
LO00 2005 

(in t!ious:intls) 
S 51,072 $ 30,700 

12. Sales o i  Accounts Receivable 

ilcc 0 1 1 1 7 / 5  Receriwble Sec1mfiraiio/7 Duke Energy I<entucky sells certain of ils accounts receivable and related 
collet tioiis thioiigli Cinergy R.eceivables Company, LLC (Cinergy Receivables), a banlauptcy ieiiiote, special 
piripose entity. Cine1 py Receivables is ii wholly owiietl, noli consolidated limited liability coiiipany of Cinergy. As 
a iesiilt of tlie socii .itization Dulte Energy Kentucky sells, 011 a revolving basis, nearly a11 of their ietail accounts 
izcci\.ablr and I elaied collections. .'The securitization tiansaction was structured to meet tlie criteria for sale 
t i  eatmeiit iiiidei SFAS No.  140, "Accounting for Tiaiisfers and Servicing of Fiiiaiicial Assets and Extinguisliiiieiits 
of 1 .iabililies," (SFAS No.  140) and according Cinergy Corp. does not consolidate Cinergy Receivables aiid the 
tiaiislei-s of ieccivables a l e  accountcd for as sales. 

l - l i t .  proceeds obtained fi om tlie salcs of receivables aie  largely cadi but do include a subordinated note from 
('inel gy Receivables for a poi tion of tlie piircliase price (typically appioximates 2.5 percent of tlie total proceeds). 
l'lir note is suboidiiiate to senior loans that Cinergy Receivables obtains froiii coiiiiiiercial paper conduits coiiholled 
b y  tinrelaiecl finant ial i~i~tittitions wliicli is the sotiice of funding for tlie subordinated note. 

I'his suhordiiiated iiote is a 1,etaiiied interest (light to ieceive a specikxl poitioii of cash flows fioiii tlie sold assets) 
iiiitlei SFAS No. 140 and is classified cvitliin Accouiits Receivable in the acconipanying Balance Sheets. In 
addition, Cinergy's ini~estmeiit in Ciiiergy Receivables coiistitutes a purchased beneficial interest (purchased right to 
I i.cei\,e .;pecified cash flows, i i i  oiir case residual cash llo\vs), which is subordinate to tlie i etained interests held by 
Ifiike Eiiergy Kent icky. 

7lir carlying valtlej of the ietiiiiierl iiiteiests a1.e deteriiiined by allocati~ig tlie carryiiig \ d u e  of tlie receivables 
betweeii the assets sold aii t l  tlie interests retained based on relative fail value. The lcey assuniptions in estimating 
Eiii v,ilLie are ciedi: losses, the selection of discount rates illid expected receivables himover late. Because (a) the 
rzcei\d)lcs geiieially ttii novel in less than two months, (b) credit losses are reasonably piedictable cfrie to Dike 
h e i g y  I<enrucky's broad customei base and lack of significant concentration, and (c) tlie purchased beneficial 
inte.1-est is snboi dinate to all retained intcrests and thus would absorb losses first, tlie allocated bases of tlie 
suboidiiiatetl notes are 1101 iiiatei.ially clil'ferent than their face value. Interest accrues to Duke Eneigy I<entucky 011 
the ietaincd iiitci-ests using tho accretable yield method, which generally appiosiiiiates the stated rate on tlie notes 
siiice tlie allocated basis and the face valtie are neai l y  equivalent An impairiiient charge is I ecorded against the 
car1 ying \ alue of both tlie ietained intei'ests and  piilcliasetl benelicial interest whenever it is ctetermined that a n  
otli~r-tli.iii-ti!ni~~orary impairmelit hiis occuried (which is unlikely unless ciedit losses on tlie receivables fai exceed 
the aiitic,ipated levc I )  

l'lir key assumptions used in estimating the fail valtie ale as follows: 

Yeiirs Eiiclc~cl 
December 31, 

2006 2005 
Anticipated c i c d i t  loss rate I .O% 1 1 %  
Discotiil l late oil espccied cash Ro\vs 1.4'% 5 7% 
Rcccivablcs tiiriiovei rate IZ.1'X) 12 3% 

l-lic* liyporheticul ei'fect on the fail I alue of tlie ietaiiietl iniei.ests assuming both a 10% and a 20% unfavorable 
\aiiatioii in cietlit losses 01 discount rates is not material due to the short turiiover of receivables and liistoiically low 
ciedit loss history. 
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l 'hc following ~ b l c  shows thc gioss aiid net receivables sold, ietained inteiests, sales, and cash Flows during [lie 
periods d i n g :  

\'ear Elltled Year Entletl 
Dccernbcr- 31, LO06 

$ 51,748 E 71,610 
20.183 29.267 

s 31,565 % 42,346 

1)ecernber 31, 2005 

E 383,713 E 405,90S 
5,721 5,5% 

z 387,040 S 391,720 

2,784 2,l 73 

('ash flous iioiii the sale oficceivables aie ieflected within Opeiatiiig Activities on tlic Consol~datetl Stateinents of 
('ash Flows 

Estimn tecl 
Usel'ul Life 

(Yenrs) 

s- IO0 
12-65 
I .545 
5-3.5 

I5 

December 31, 1)eeeiiiber 31, 
2006 2005 

(in tliousniitls) 
s; 9,932 li; 4,636 

I ,06S,630 
395,340 

3,919 
23.91 1 
26,670 
23,052 

292,930 
274,548 

s,352 
22, I59 
12,540 
18,614 

1,45 1,463 634,079 
(599,625) ( I  S8,GIJ) 

I otal i ic t  prt.pei t y ,  i p l a i i t  aiid eqtiipmeni li; 85 1338  s; 445,465 

( J )  liiclucles capitalized leases: $17,857 for 2006 aiid $16,610 for 2005. 
(b )  Incitides accti~niiI;ited amoitization of capitalized leases: $1,329 for 2006 aiid $1,009 for 200.5. 
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14. Debt alicl Credit Facilities 

Surninary 0 1  Debt and Related Terms 

I - l l ta l  tlcbt 
Ctii I cnt  i i i a tu i  itics of ioiig-tci ni debt 
Slioi t-ici m i i ~ i e s  payable 

rt!ial lollg-tCl I l l  tlcbt 

\Veiglitetl- 
A v W l g e  

Deceiiilwr 31, 

(in tliousaiitls) 

Rate \'esl" I h e  
2006 ZOO5 

6 0 '!h 2008-2036 S; 195,000 5 95,000 
5 3 2008-20l5 13,513 12,327 
3 9 'Yo 2027 76,720 
5 4 'Z, 42,603 20,777 

(723) (591) 

327,l I3 136,513 
(1,31S) (1,233) 

(42,603) (29,777) 

.P; 2S3,102 S 105,503 

(.I) Includis $77 niillion of  Duke Energy Keiilucky pollulion control bonds as of December 31, 2006 

I n  .Ailgust 2006, Diilte Enei g); I<eiitucky issued approximately $77 iilillion principal amount of floating late tax- 
exempt notes due r\ugtist 1, 2027. Proceeds from tlie issuaiice were used to refund a like amount of debt on 
Septeiiibei 1, 2006 oulstaiitling a t  Duke Eiieigy Ohio. The Duke Eiiergy Ohio debt was assuiiiecl by Duke Eiiergy 
I<entucl,y as p i t  o/' tlie ieceiit tiansfei of generating assets from Duke Eneigy Ohio to Dike  Energy IGxtuclcy. 
Approxiiiiatzly $27 million 01- tlie floating rate debt was swapped to a fixed rate conctuient with closing. 

Duke Eiieigy l<ent.iclcy participates with Duke Eneigy aiicl other Duke Energy subsidiaries in a money pool 
arriiiigeiiiciit to betier inanage cash d worlcing capital requiiements. Under this ai rangeiiient, those coiiipanies \\,it11 
short-tei m fuiicls pi ovide shoi t-term loam to affiliates participating tinder this arrangement. Prior to tlie meiger, 
h k e  Eiiergy I<ent.iclcy pi ticipiitetl in a similar iiioiiey pool arrangement with Ciiieigy and other Cineigy 
siibsicliaries The aiiioiiiiis outstunding under this money pool ariangement are shown as a componeiit of Notes 
pal able and comm:rcial papel- on tlie Consolidated Balance Sheets. The amounts outstanding were $42,60.3 as of 
1)eceiiibei .3 I ,  2000 and $29,777 as of December 3 1, 200.5. The change in the money pool from Decembei 3 1, 2005 
to 1)ecember 3 1, 2006 is rellecterl as a $12,S26 cash inflow i n  Notes payable and commercial paper within Net cash 
provided by (used in) linanciiig activities on the Statement of Cash Flows. 

2007 

2008 

2000 

20 IO 

201 I 

I l ic ieal te i  

I ~ i t e 1  I 11ig-1ei in (lcbi (iiiclutling ciiiieiii mat i i i i t i es )  

Annual Maturities as  
ol'i)cccnilieI 31, ZOO6 

(iii tliorisniitls) 

S; 1,318 

2 I ,463 

2 I ,%4 

I,I I S  

9 I 0 

237,708 

S; 284.5 10 
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I)ulte Eiiergy I<eiit.iclty has tlie ability under certain debt facilities to call and iepay tlie obligation piior to its 
scheduled maturity. Tlieiel‘orc’, tlie actual timing of future cash repayments could be iilaterially diflkrent t h a n  tlie 
abovc as ii result ol’Dul;e Eiiergy I<eiitucky’s ability to repay these obligatioiis pi ior to tlieii scheduled matiirity. 

A 11 :I i I ab I c C r et l i t I’a c i li  t i es a iitl Restrictive Debt Coven a 11 t s 

Ihlte Eiiergy Kent icky 1 eceives support foi its shoi t-term boirowing needs fioiii its paleiit entity, Cineigy, whose 
short-tei iii bori owiiigs consist pi iniiirily of unsecured revolving lilies of credit and sale of coiiiiiiercial paper. During 
lime 7000, Clincrg), aiid its subsidiai ies, including Duke Eiiergy Kentuclty, aiiiended their multi-year syndicated 
$2.11 billion revolving credit facility to extend the expiration date from September 2010 to June 201 1 ,  to reduce 
costs, aiid to confo. 111 {lie ternis to those found i n  tlie legacy Dulte Eiieigy facilities In Noveiiibei 2006, tlie ciedit 
i,iciliry ‘iv;is d e c r e a 4  from $2.0 billion to $ 1  .S billion This ciedit facility contains an option allowing borrowing up 
to tlie fiill ainoiint of the facility on the clay of initial expilation for lip to one year and contains a covenant iequiring 
the cl(sbt-to-total capitalization ratio to not exceed 65% foi Cinergy aiitl certain of its subsidiaries, incliiding Dulte 
l,iic.r?y ICcniucky. The cretlit Facility also contains a $100 million bonowing sub limit for Dulte Energy Kentucky. 

l’lir issuance ol‘co:iiiiieicinl pa lm,  letteis or credit and otliei boiiowiiigs reduces the aiiioLiiit available wider the 
a va i lo b 102 ci c cl i t lac i 1 it  i es 

(’inel gy’s CI  eclii agieeiiient contains various financial and other covenants; however, Cinergy’s ciedit agieement 
does i ioi include iiiitei ial ailveise change clauses 01 a n y  covenants based on ciedit I atings. Failure to meet those 
co\,eiiants beyond ;ipplicable gmce pel iods could result i n  accelerated due dates aiitl/or terminalion of the 
agizemt 111s. As of Ileceiiibei~ 3 I ,  2006, Cineigy was in compliance with those covenants. I n  addition, some ci-edit 
agreemc nts may a1 ow for acreleiation of payments or teriiiiiatioii oftlie agreements due to nonpayiiient, 01 to the 
acceleration 01’ ot1icLr signilicant indebtedness of tlie borrower or soiiie of its subsidiaries. Nolie of tlie debt or credit 
ayiteiiiriits contail-. material ad\  else cliaiige clauses. 

15. C‘oiniiiitnicntb and Contingencics 

Effective with tlie date of tlie tiieigei between Duke Eneigy and Cinergy, Duke Eiieigy ICentucky carries, either 
r l i i ~ ~ ~ l y  01 tlu-oiigli Duke Eiiei gy’s captive insiu aiice coiiipaiiy, Bison Insurance Coiiipaiiy L.imited, insuiaiice and 
iciiisiirai1c.e co\ erages consistent with companies engaged in sitiiilai commercial operations with siiiiilal, type 
ploptities T)uke E.iergy Kcntiiclty’s insiirance coverage includes ( I )  coniiiercial geneial public liability insurance 
Cor liabilities ai ising to t l i i i t l  parties foi hodily iiijury and propeity damage iesiiltiiig from Duke Eiieigy ICeiitucky’s 
apcratioiis; ( 2 )  \VOI Iteis’ compelisation liability coveiage to requiietl statutory limits; (3) automobile liability 
iiisinanc e foi all o\viied, iioii-ow necl and hired vehicles covering liabilities to third parties for bodily iiijui y and 
piopert), clamage; (1) iiisiiianc e policies in support of tlie indenuiificatioii provisions of Dulte Eneigy ICentucky’s by- 
hi! s ;iii(I ( 5 )  p i  ope; ty iiisiirniice covering the ieplacement value of al l  leal a n d  personal pioperty damage, excluding 
e lec t 1 i c tr:i 11s mi s s io i i  a iid d is ti i b ti t i o 11 1 in es, i iic 1 udi ng d a m  g es ai- is i ng fi,om bo i le r a iid iiiacli iiie I y b r e a k d o ~ m ,  
ea1 llicpilte, flood ciamage and  extra expense. All coverages ale subject to certain deductibles, teriiis and conditions 
coiiiiiioii Ibr coiiipmies with similar types of opeiations. 

I)ulte Eiieigy Kent icky also iiiaintaiiis excess liability insiirance c o w  age above tlie established pi imai y limits foi 
coninieicial geiieial liability and auroiiiobilc liability instiiance. L h i t s ,  terms, conditions and dedtictibles are 
coiiipmble to tliosi: cari ietl by otliei companies with similai types of opcrations. 

7 li(, cost of Ilu1,e L neigy Kentucky’s genela1 iiisiiriiiice coverages continued to fluctuate over tlie past yea1 
izilectiiig tht  clianging condirioiis of tlie insuiaiice mal- lets.  

I ~ i i k c ~  Eiirigy I<eiilLicI\y is sublcct to fetleial, state a i id  local regulatlons legaiding ai1 and watei quallty, h a m d o u s  
and  solid waste disposd and otliei enviionmental matteis These iegulations can be changed fioiii tiiiie to time, 
1iiiI)ojiiig new obligations on Duke Eneigy Ib i tucky  
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Like otlieis in tlie eiieisy industry, Dulce Energy Kentucky and its affiliates are responsible for enviioiimeiital 
itmediation at \ , a r i a i s  contaniinateci sites. These include soiiie propelties that are part of ongoing Dulce Energy 
I<entucl,y opei atioiis, sites I‘oi mei,ly owned or used by Duke Eiieigy Kentucky entities, and sites owned by third 
pal ties. Remediatit 11 typical]) iiivolves iiianagement of contaminated soils and may involve groundwater 
iznietliation M;inaged in coii.junctioii with I elevaiit federal, state and local agencies, activities vary with site 
c ond i t io iis a lid I oci, t io lis, re 1111: d i a1 1 equ i reiiie 11 t s , co nip I ex it y and shai i ng of re spoils i b il i t y . If re media t io i i  activities 
iiivolve StLitutoi y jctiiit and seveial liability piovisions, strict liability, or cost iecovery or contribution actions, Duke 
1,ncLigy Keniucky c;r its affiliates cotiltl potentially be held responsible for contamination caused by other parties. In 
some initiiiices. DL Ice Enei gy Kentucky may share liability associated with contamination with otliei potentially 
r?spoiisibIe parlies anti may aIso bciiefil fioiii insuiaiice policies 01- contractual indemnities that Cove1 Sollie or all 
cleunup costs All of tliese sites generally ale managed in tlie noriiial course of business or affiliate opeiations. 
hknagement bclieves that coiiipletioii 01 resolution of tliese matters will have 110 iiiatei ial adveise effect 011 Duke 
I.,nc*rgy IKeiiiucky’s consolidated results of operations, cash flows or fiiiaiicial position. 

‘1 l i ( s  I J.S Enviionniental Piotcctioii Agency’s (EPA’s) fi l ial  Clean Watei Act Section 3 1 G(b) rule became effective 
J u l y  9, 2004. Tlie I d e  established aquatic piotectioii iequirements foi existing lhcilities that witlidi a w  SO million 
gal!oiis 31 moi e of watei per (lay f iom rivers, streams, lalccs, reservoiis, estuaries, oceans, or other L J S ,  wateis foi 
cooliiig pili-poses (:oal-liied geiieiating facilities in which Duke Energy ICentucky is either a whole 01 partial owiiei 
are alfei tcci sources iiiidci that  itile. On Janualy 25, 2007, tlie U.S. Court of Appeals for the Second Ciicuit issued its 
opiiiioii in /?i iv i l teep~r,  Iirc,. 11 EPil , Nos. 04-6692-ag(L,) et. a ] .  (2d Cir. 2007) remanding most aspects of EPA’s 
idc. back LO the agvncy. l%z court effectively disallowed those portions of (lie i ule most favorable to industiy, antl 
the dc’cisioii cieates a gieat deal of iiiicei tainty iegarding ftituie requirements and their timing. Although Duke 
I,iic>rgy ICentucky is still unable to estiiiiate costs to coiiiply with the EPA’s rule, it is expected that costs will 
iiiciease as a iesrilt of tlie court’s decision. The iiiagnitude of a n y  such increase cannot be estimnted at this time. 

1 i i ( 8  I P,\ finali/ed its CAMR and C‘AIR in May 200.5. The CAMR limits total aiuiual meicury emissions fiom coal- 
fired I ~ O W L ‘ I  plants .icross tlie United States tlii ougli a two-phased cap-and-trade progi am. Phase 1 begins in 20 10 
aiid Phase 2 begins in 201 8 1 lie CAIR limits total annual  and  summeitiiiie iiitiogeii oxides (NOx) emissions and 
aiinrx,l sitlf~ir dioxide (SO 2 )  cmissioiis fioiii electiic geiieiating facilities across the Eastern United States tliiougli a 
t\vo-pliascd ca~i-a~i.I-t~~ide progiaiii Phase 1 begins in 2009 foi NOx and in 2010 foi SO 2. Phase 2 begins i n  201.5 
for both KOS and SO 2. 

I)Like Energy Kent icky cu i  iently estimates that i t  will spend appioximately $13 iiiillion between 2007 a n d  201 1 to 
comply with Phase 1 of CAMR and CAIR a t  plants that Duke Energy Kentucky omns or pal tially owis but does not 
operate IhI te  Iiieigy Kentucky currently estimates that any additional costs it might incui, to comply with Phase 1 
of (3AMR or C,\IR will have no mateiial adverse effect on its consolidated results of opeiations, cash flows or 
financial position. Duke Enei gy Ohio ciirrently estimates that it will not inctir any significant costs for complying 
\\/it11 1’li;isc. 2 of’ CAIR and is CLII  rently unable to estimate the cost of complying with Pliase 2 of CAMR. 

Incl~itletl in  Otliei Curielit Lkibilities antl Ollie1 Defei,ied Ciedits and Other Lhbilities on tlie Balance Sheets were 
total  acc.ruals ielatc d to exteiiiietl enviionmeiital-relatetl activities ofappioximately $2 nillion for each yea1 elided 
1)ei:eiiilxi 3 1, 2000 and 2005 Iliese accruals represent Diilte Energy Kentucky’s provisions foi costs associated 
\\lit11 1 emediLition aztivities at some of its cur1 ent aiid former sites, as well as other ielevant eiivironiiiental contingent 
liabilitirs. Manageinelit belie\,es tha t  completion 01 iesolution of these matteis will have no material acherse effect 
on i)ukc* Iiiieigy IC3iitiicky’s c oiisolidated iesults oioperations, cash flows or financial position. 
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I n  March 2004, tlie state ol'North Caloliiia filed a petition under Section 126 oftlie CAA in which i t  alleges that 
so~irces in 1 i upwi,id states including ICentticky, significantly contribute to Noitli Carolina's lion-attainment with 
cei-lain ambient air quality standards. In August 200.5, the EPA issued a proposed iesponse to tlie petition. Tlie EPA 
proposeif to deny the ozone portion of tlie petition based upon a lack of contribution to ail quality by the named 
states 'The ISPI\ also pioposed to deny tlie paiticulate matter poi tion of the petition based upoil tlie CAIR Federal 
Iiii1,Ieiii~:nlalionitarioii P h i  (FIP),  that  woiild addiess the air quality conceriis ftoni neighboring states On Apiil 2S, 2006, 
the EPA tleiiierl Nc'rtli Caioliiia's pctition bused upon tlie liiial CAIR FIP desci ibed above. Noitli Carolina has filed 
a legal challenge tc, tlic EPA's denial. 

I n  l u l y  7004, the states of C'oiinccticut, New Yorlt, Califoi nia, Iowa, New Jeisey, Rliode Island, Vermont, 
\Viscoii:;iii, und the City of Ncw Yorlc biouglit a lawsuit in tlie United States District Couit for the Southern District 
o f  New Yoi IC against C'iiieigy. American Electiic Power Company, Inc., American Electric Powel, Service 
( ' 0 1  poration, Tlie Southei n Company, Tennessee Valley Authority, and Sce l  Energy Inc. A similar lawsuit was 
li1e;l i n  ihi: llnired States Disti,ict Couit for tlie Soulliein District of New York against the same companies by Open 
Spocts lirsiitiite, I n c  ., Opcn Space Consei-vancy, Inc , and The A L I ~ L I ~ O I I  Society of New Hampshire. These lawsuits 
allegc tliai tlie tiefendants' cniissions of CO-, from the combustion of fossil fuels at electric generating facilities 
conti ibute to global warming and amount to a public nuisance. Tlie complaints also allege that the defendants could 
genei atc tlie same miouiit of electi icity while emitting significantly less COz. Tlie plaintiffs are seelcing an 
injunction icquiriiig each defendant to cap its COz emissions and  then reduce them by a specified pei'centage each 
geai- io1 a1 least a decade. I n  September 2005, the district court granted tlie defendants' motion to dismiss the 
1:iu suit. The plainiiffs li~ive appealed this i.uling to tlie Second Circuit Court of Appeals. 01 a1 argument was held 
befoic the Szcoiid Circuit Court of Appcals in June 2006. 

1 1  is not possible to predict with certainty whether D~ilte Energy ICentuclcy will incui any liability or to estimate tlie 
clamage,;, if ;in)', tlint Dulce Eireigy ICentuclcy might incur in connection with this mattel" 

Duke Eneigy Kent icky lias performecl site iissessnieiits on cei tain of its sites where MGP activities are believed to 
1ia1.e clcc~i~rt~cl  a t  sc me point in tlie past and have foouncl no imminent risk to tlie environment At this time, Duke 
I n t q y  ICeniucky cannot pi edict wlietlier investigation anil/or remediation will be required in tlie future at any of 
tiiese sires. 

[)Like Energy Kent icky unrlei stands that a class action lawsuit \.vas liled in Supel ior Court in Ontario, Canada 
againjt lluke Eiieigy Ohio and  apliioximately 20 othei utility and  powei genelation companies alleging various 
claims izlating io enviioiiniental emissions fiom coal-lieti powel generation facilities in the United States and 
( h i a h  and dalnapes c i f  appioxiiiiately $50 billion, with continuing damages in the amount of appi oximately $4 
billioii ani iual ly .  Dul;c Eiieigy Ohio untleistancl that tlie lawsuit also claims entitlenient to punitive and exeiiiplary 
claniage,; in the :iiiiouni o f $ ]  billion. Diilce Energy Ohio lias not yet been seived in this lawsuit; however, i f  served, 
h k e  Eiieigy Ohio intciitls to defend this lawsuit vigoiously i i i  couit. 

C h i  A p i l  19, 2006, Ciiieigy VI as named in tlie thiicl amended complaint of a pwpoited class action lawsuit liled in 
(lie Uniletl Statcs Disti ici Court fool the Southern District of Mississippi. Plaintiffs claim that Cinergy, along with 
iiiiiiieioiis olliei utilities, oil conipanies, coal companies and chemical companies, is liable for daniages ielating to 
losses siiifei ecl b y  vic t im of liurricane ICati-ina. Plaintiffs claim that the defenrlant's, greenhouse gas emissions 
contributed io tlie Ireqtiency ant1 intensity of storms such tis Hui-ricane I<ati.ina. I n  October 2006, Cineigy was 
sei \Fed \v i l l i  this la\vsuit i incl  subsequently filed a motion to clisniiss. Pi io1 to a ruling on that motion, in Deceiiibei 
2006 plaiiitil'fs liletl a iiiotion for leave to file a fouith amended complaint to set foi th additional claims, adti 
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adrlitioiial pal tics and I O  substitute piopci pal ties for iinpropei ly iiained defendants. Specifically, plaintiffs seek to 
I zplace holding coiiipanies, such as Cincrgy, with tlieii opeiating company subsidiaries, such as Duke Eneigy 
I<eiitucl\y It  is not possible to predict with certainty whethei Duke Energy ICeiitucky will incur any liability or to 
estiiiiLite the dainages, if any, that Dulte Energy ICentuclty might incur in connection with this matter. 

Otliei L . / f i g ~ / i o i i  (11 d L.egal Pi.oc*eedriigs 

D u k e  Eiiergy Kent icky is iiivolved in other legal, tax and i.egulatory proceedings arising in tlie ordinary course of- 
business, some of ivliicli involve substantial amounts. Management believes that tlie final disposition of these 
pioceedings will not have a matei-ial adverse effect 011 Duke Energy Kentucky's results of operations, cash flows 01' 

I'i iiii iic ia I posit ion 

[)Like Eiiergy I<ent.icky lias euposuie to certain legal matters that are described herein. As oiDeceiiiber 3 1 ,  2006, 
Duke Eiieigy Kent icky lias 1-vcorded immaterial ieserves ror these ptoceediiigs and exposui-es Duke Energy 
I<eiitiicl,y espciises legal costs ielated to tlie defense of loss contingencies as incurietl. 

16. L.:mplo~ ec 13eiielit Obligations 

[hike Eiieigy Kent iclcy pal tic ipates in qualified tleliiietl benefit pension plans as well as other post-retirement 
benefit plans sponsored by Cinergy Cinergy allocates pension and other post-retirement obligations and costs 
wloted to these plaiis to Dulte Eneigy ICeiituclcy. 

I lpoii coiisuiiiiiiation of tlie merger with Duke Eneigy, Ciiiergy's benefit plan obligations were I emeasured. Cineigy 
updated tlie nssiimptioiis wed to dereriiiiiie their accrued benefit obligations and prospective iiet pel iodic 
benef'it/~iost-ieti~.eiieii~ costs to be allocated to Dulte Energy Kentucky. As a result. the discount rate used to 
rletzriiiiiie net periodic beiiefii cost to be allocated to Dulte Energy Ohio by Duke Eneigy changed fi,oiii 5.50% to 
0 OOY;) iii 2006 

L)ul;e Eiieigy ICeiit icky adopted tlie disclosure and recognition piovisioiis of SFAS No. 1.58, eflective December 3 1, 
2006 1 lie followiiig table desciibes the total incremental effect of tlie adoption of SFAS No. 158 011 individual line 
iieins in tlie Duke liiieigy I<eiihicky December 3 1, 2006 Consolidated Balance Sheet. 

( ; I )  Incluiles approximately $ 1  iiiillioii related to pension benefits i n  Other Cuiieiit Liabilities and 
:ippi-oYiiiiately $ 5 nullion related to otliei. 1.7ost-eiiiployiiieiit benefits in Otliei Lhbilities on the 
Balance Sheets at Decembei 31, 2006. 
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(:ineigy’s quali liecl defined benefit pension plans cover substantially a l l  United States employees iiieeting cei taiii 
miiiiiiiuiii age a n d  s en  ice ieqiiiiemeiits. Cineigy’s qualified tlefiiied benefit pension plaiis use a final average 
eai iiiiigs Io r~ i i~~ la .  l lnder  a final avei-age earnings foi,mula, a plan participant accumulates a ietiiement beiieiit equal 
to a pelcentage of their highest i-year average earnings, plus a percentage of the theii highest 3-year average 
eariiiiigs in exccss of c o i t w d  compensation per year o l  participation (maximum of 35 years), plus a percentage of 
their highest .3-yeai average eainings times years of pal ticipation in excess of 35 yeais. Tlie pension plans’ assets 
consist of invesiments in equity and debt securities. 

Actuarial gains and losses are amorLized over tlie average iemaining service period of the active eniployees Tlie 
aveiage icmaining service 1x1 iod ol’the active employees covered by the retii-eiiient plan is 12 years. Cinergy 
tletcimiiies the iiiai lcet-related value ol’plan assets using a calculated value that recognizes changes i n  fail value of 
the plan assets ovei fii e years. Ciiiergy uses a September 30 measurement date for its defined benefit re[iieiiieiit 
plans 

I)uke Eiiergy I<ent.icky’s Qunlil’ied Pension Plan Pi-e-Tax Net Periodic Pension Benefit costs as allocated by 
(’ineigy \ \we  appioxiinakly Y2 9 niillion and  $1.6 million for the yeais entled December 31, 2006 and 2005, 
respectively 

1 I i (~  1:iii valiie ol Cine] gy’s plan assets \vas E 1,302 iiillion as of Septembei 30, 2006 and $1,169 million as 01’ 
Septeml)er 30, 7005. 1 he piojected benefit obligation for the plans was $1,976 million as of September 30, 2006 ;iiid 

J 1,75 1 iiiillion ;is o f  Scpleniber 30, 200.5. Tlie acciiiiiulateii benefit obligation foi tlie plaiis was $1,688 nillion at 
Septeiiil~er 30, 2006 aiid $1,535 million at  September 30, 2005. The acciuecl pension liability as allocated by 
(’inel gy to Duke E iergy I<entuclcy m i  i ecogiiized iii Accrued pension and otlier postretireiiieiit benefit costs within 
the Coniolirlated Balance Sheets a t  December 31, 2006 and 2005 mias approximately $24 million aiid $ 1  3 iiiillioii. 
I cspectively 

I)uke Eiieigy Kent icky contributed appioximately $2 iiiillion for both of the years elided December 31, 2006 aiid 
20(Js rehpecLively, Lo tile legacy Cinergy qualified pension plans. 

1.11~ a m o u n t  recogiiizet-l in  I<egulatoi-y assets was approximately $15 million as of Decembei 3 1 ,  2006 

AssliliiptloIii used Toi Cinei gv’s pension benefits accouiiting weie as follo\vs. 

( J )  1)iscouiit I ate mas 6 OO‘% lo1 tlie nine months elided Decembei 31, 2006 Discount late was 5.50% and 
75% foi tlie t h e e  inonths ended Mal cli 3 1 ,  2006 aiid tlie yea1 ended Decembei 3 I ,  2005 

I n  adtlition, Ciiieigy also maiiitains, and Duke Energy I<entucky paiticipates in, non-qualified, non-contributory 
tletincd bcnclit ietiienient plans (plaiis that do not iiieet tlie criteria foi certain tax beiielits) that cover officers, 
certain otliei key eiiiployees, iuiitl lion-employee directors. There are 110 plan assets. The piojected benefit obligatio11 
101 tlie plans \vas $114 iiiillioii as ol‘September 30, 2006 and $147 iidlion as of September 30, 2005. Tlie 
accuinuiated beiief~t obligation lor the plans was $109 iiillioii at September 30, 2006 and $132 iilillioii a t  Septembei 
30, 2005. Tlie accri.ied pension liability as allocated by Cinergy to Dulte Eiieigy Ikntuclcy and iecogiiized in 
Acciuetl pension and otliei postietii ement benefit costs within the Consolidated Balance Sheets at December 3 1, 
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2006 and LOO5 was $134 thousand antl S 109 thousand, respectively, and as recognized in Other Curient Liabilities 
ivitliiii tlie Consolitlated Balance Sheet a t  Decembei, 3 1, 2006 was $1 1 thousand. 

Duke Eiieigy Kent icky’s Noli-Qualified Pension Plan pie-tax Net Pel iodic Pensioii Benefit Costs as allocated by 
(’inel gy foi the ye: I S  eiitletl Decembei 3 1, 2006 and 2005 wei  e $16,000 aiid $ 1 1,000, iespectively 

Assiiiiiptioiis iised Coi, Cinei gy’s pension benefits accounting wei e as follo\vs. 

2006 2005 

I k r i  eli t Ob1 i ga t io 11s 
Discount I J t C  5 15 5 15 

Nct  I’ci iodic Bciiclit < o\t 
DI>COLIIlt l d t C  5 50-0 00 5 15 

S a l ~ i y  i i ic iease 5 00 4 00 

Siilrii y i i i c i e m  5 00 4 00 

( J )  Discount iJte WJS 6 00% foi the iiiiie months ended Deceiiibei 31, 2006 Discount late was 5 50% aiid 
5 75% Io1 the thee  moiiths endcd hdaich 3 I ,  2000 a n d  the yea1 entletl Decembei 31, 2005 

Duke Energy I<eiitliclcy p i  ticipates iii other postretirement benefit plans spoiisoied by Cinergy Cinergy provides 
cei-lain Iieultli care .ind life iiisuiance benefits to retired LJnited States eiiiployees and their eligible dependents on a 
conti ibutoi y antl nun-ronti ibutory basis These benefits ale subject to i i l ini i i iui i i  age and service requirements. The 
healtli c m  benefits include iiietlical coverage, dental coverage, aiid prescription drug coverage and ai’e subject to 
cerrain limitations, such as deductibles aiid co-payments. ‘rliese benefit costs ai-e accrued over a n  employee’s active 
sei-vic e period to the dntc of fii l l  beliefits eligibility. The iiet unrecognized transition obligation is amortized over 
approsiiiintely 20 )ears. Actuwial gains aiid losses are amortized over tlie average remaining service pel iocl of tlic 
activc eiiiployet:~. The aveiage iemniiiing seivice period of the active employees covered by the plan is 13 yeais. 
l‘licre ai e 110 plan assets. The accuiiiulated other post-ietiiement benefit obligation for the plaiis was $497 million as 
0 1  Septenibei 30, 2006aiid $4 14 million as oi‘ Septeiiiber 30, 2005. The accrued other post-ietiicment liability as 
aIloc;iteJ by Cinergy to l h k e  Energy I<cntucky and recognized in Accrued pension and other postretirement beliefit 
costs within the Consolidated Bulance Sheets at  December 3 1, 2006 and 2005 was E13 inillioii aiitl $7 nlillion, 
respecti\/ely. and as recognized in 0 th  Current L,iabilities within tlie Consolidatetl Balance Sheet at Deceiiiber 3 1, 
20b6 wiis % 1 million. 

I)iilie Eiiergy I<ent.iclcy’s Other Post-Retirement Plan p r e t a x  Net Periodic Benefit costs as allocated by Ciiieigy for 
the yrai i; ciicled Deceiiiber 3 1 2006 and 2005 were $1.2 million aiicl $ 1 . 1  million, iespectively. 

l‘hc, amoiiiit recogi:izetl in liegulatoiy assets was approximately $6 iiiillioii as of Dccember 31, 2006 

Assuiiiptioiis iised in C’inei gy’s othcr post-i etiiement benefits accounting u w e  as follows: 

2006 2005 

I3eiielit Ol)ligations 
Dlscolllll I’ItC 5 15 5 50 
Net Pci iodic I3ciielit Cost 
D i ~ ~ ~ ~ t i i i t  I J ~ C  ’ 5 50-6 00 6 00 

( .I)  Discount late wx 6 00% foi tlic nine months ended Decembei 3 1,  2006 Discouiit late was 5 50% and 
5 75% 101 h e  t h e e  iiioiitlis ended i\/Iaicli 3 1, 2006 and tlie yeai ended Decembei 31, 2005 
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17. Otlier Incomc and Espclnses, net 

1 hc. coinponents ol Othei Income and Eupenses, net on the Statements of Opeiations f a  the yeais ended 
Ifec,eiiiL-el 3 1, 2000 and the ended I)eceiiibei 3 1, 2005 ale as iollows~ 

Yenl. Ycat 
Elldctl Entletl 

I~ePember 31, Dccembet 3 I, 
2006 2005 

(//I rhoi~sn~rdl\) 

i o  a1 

$ 3,192 s 2,525 
626 642 

(1.609) (220)  

0; 6-- 2.947 
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